
Planning and Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

September 19, 2019 
Page 1 of 2 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Chairman Gary Pranzo 
Vice-Chair Lonnie Frost 
Commissioner Robert Smidt 
Commissioner Andrew Simmonds 
Commissioner Duane Proulx 

Thursday September 19, 2019 

Florence Town Hall 
775 N. Main Street 

Florence, AZ 85132 
(520) 868-7575 

www.florenceaz.gov 
Meets 1st and 3rd Thursdays 

  6:00 PM 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the Town of Florence Planning and 
Zoning Commission and to the general public that a Regular Meeting of the Florence Planning 
and Zoning Commission will be held on Thursday, September 19, 2019, at 6:00 p.m., in the 
Florence Town Council Chambers, located at 775 N. Main Street, Florence, Arizona.  

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL: Chairman Pranzo____, Vice-Chair Frost____, Commissioner Smidt____,
Commissioner Simmonds____, Commissioner Proulx____.

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. DISCUSSION/APPROVAL/DISAPPROVAL of the minutes of the regular meetings
conducted on September 5, 2019.

5. OLD BUSINESS

A. Discussion Table of Contents Proposed Restructure-Version 1, Module 1 – 
Administration and Procedures-Version 1, and Temporary Use Permit Process-
Version 1 

6. NEW BUSINESS

A. Design Review for new Pinal County Attorney’s Building located at 971 Jason 
Lopez Circle, APN 200-46-005R. 

B. Design Review for new Pinal County Development Services Building and 
Remodel of a  portion of the existing Building “F” located at 85 North Florence 
Street, APN 200-49-029A, 047A, 048 and 049. 



Planning and Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

September 19, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

PRESENTATIONS 

B. Redevelopment Plan Update 

C. General Plan Update 

D. Future Agenda Items/Information Only 
i. Conditional Use Permit for Desert Rock Church
ii. Preliminary Plats for Merrill Ranch
iii. Preliminary Plat for Mesquite Trails

7. CALL TO THE PUBLIC/COMMISSION RESPONSE:

Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. Individual Commission members may respond to criticisms made, may ask staff to 
review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, members 
of the Commission shall not discuss or take action on any matter during an open call to the public 
unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 

8. CALL TO THE COMMISSION- CURRENT EVENTS ONLY.

9. ADJOURNMENT

POSTED ON SEPTEMBER 12, 2019 BY MARIA HERNANDEZ, DEPUTY TOWN CLERK,
AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND AT 
WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
*** PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF DISABILITY 
REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY MAY 
REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY CONTACTING TOWN OF FLORENCE 
ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD.  REQUESTS SHOULD BE 
MADE AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATION. 
*** 



Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes  Meeting Date:  September 5, 2019 
Page 1 of 3 
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 
MINUTES OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE 
REGULAR MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 5, 2019, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE 
TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, LOCATED AT 775 N. MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Vice-Chair Frost called the meeting to order at 6:02 pm 
 
2.  ROLL CALL: 
 
Chairman Pranzo   Absent 
Vice-Chair Frost   Present 
Commissioner Smidt  Absent 
Commissioner Simmonds Present 
Commissioner Proulx  Present 
 
3.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
4.  DISCUSSION/APPROVAL/DISAPPROVAL of the minutes of the regular meetings 

conducted on July 18, 2019. 
 
On a motion by Commissioner Simmonds, seconded by Commissioner Proulx, and 
carried by a 3-0 vote, to approve the regular meeting minutes from July 18, 2019. 
 
5. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Reintroduction and Discussion of the Development Code Reorganization and 
Schedule and Draft Temporary Use Permit Code. 
 

Mr. Dana Burkhardt, Planning Consultant, gave an update on the Development Code 
Reorganization process and discussed the need for language on Temporary Use Permits.  He 
stated the sections in the Commissioner’s packets showed the first module for editing and a 
tentative outline of dates for meetings.  September 19th will be when the edits come back for 
review.  There will be a neighborhood meeting and possibly a joint Planning and Zoning and 
Town Council review before a second draft is formalized.  Mr. Harmer said HDAC has added a 
couple of modifications that will need review, also.  Another edit is to the subdivision code to 
clarify approval expirations for Preliminary and Final Plats.  Vice-Chair Frost asked if the 
Commissioner’s homework is to make comments on the code pages provided in the packet. Staff 
said yes.  
 
6. PRESENTATIONS 

 
A. Redevelopment Plan 

  



Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes  Meeting Date:  September 5, 2019 
Page 2 of 3 
 

Council awarded a contract to a consultant team for the Redevelopment Plan. Recently, 
focus groups were held in the Community Center where a number of people participated. 
A first draft of the redevelopment district map will take into account important land uses 
and landmarks. On October 17th, there will be a joint meeting with HDAC since most of 
the redevelopment area includes the historic district. There will be an informal  public work 
session from 4:30 until 6:30 PM at the Community Center. The Commission is more than 
welcome to come to the meeting, but the Planning and Zoning Commission will begin at 
its regular time.  

 
B. General Plan Update 
Staff sent out a Request for Qualifications and received four submittals.  Staff selected a 
group  and is currently reviewing their Scope of Work.  Staff will take the contract to Council 
in October.  Vice-Chair Frost asked about the timeline for the General Plan.  Mr. Harmer 
replied that the current General Plan will expire in 2020. If we do not adopt one by 2020, 
there is no repercussion. Staff anticipated the General Plan will be finished by the end of 
2020 or the beginning of 2021. The document then would go to a general election for 
ratification by the community. The planning area is going to be reduced and there will be 
modifications to the implementation strategy and the reduction of land use classifications.  

  
C. Future Agenda Items/Information Only 

i. Design Review for new Pinal County Attorney Building 
ii. Design Review for new Pinal County Community Development Building 
iii. Conditional Use Permit for Desert Rock Church 
iv. Preliminary Plats for Merrill Ranch 
v. Preliminary Plat for Mesquite Trails 

 
A Design Review application came in for a new County Attorney building out on Jason Lopez 
Circle . It will be coming forward on the next agenda. The County will also replace Building F with 
a new Community Development Building.  The Town is processing an abandonment of a piece 
of street to accommodate the building and help connect it to the existing complex. On west 
Franklin Road, just north of the hospital, the Desert Rock Church has purchased land, and they 
are interested in a new sanctuary building, paved parking, and other improvements.  They applied 
for a Conditional Use Permit and the application will come to the Commission for review. 
 
Six Preliminary Plats for Anthem at Merrill Ranch will be coming to Commission.  A Preliminary 
Plat from Mesquite Trails will also be coming before the Commission.  Five plats in Mesquite 
Trails have already been reviewed and recorded. The sixth plat is currently in second review and 
may come in October.  Another future agenda item is a review for the Windmill Winery Hotel.  
The location moved to the north side of Butte and to the east of the Winery. The hotel elevations 
will look the same, but the site plan is different.  Vice-Chair Frost was concerned about Mesquite 
Trails’ water and wastewater services.  Mr. Harmer stated the Final Plat must show all 
engineering and utility services before it is approved.  The developers are already in discussions 
with EPCOR on future services.  

 
7. CALL TO THE PUBLIC/COMMISSION RESPONSE: 
Councilmember Anderson stated that Council Liaison Hawkins will return when the weather cools 
down and looks forward to future meetings. The Commission wished him well. 
 



Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes  Meeting Date:  September 5, 2019 
Page 3 of 3 
 

8. CALL TO THE COMMISSION- CURRENT EVENTS ONLY.  
Vice-Chair Frost asked for a possible presentation from the municipal water services on water 
resources.  He stated it would be good for the Commission and the public to have an idea of what 
water and wastewater services and resources are available to the Town.  Staff agreed to pass 
on the request. 
  
9.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion by Commissioner Proulx, seconded by Commissioner Simmonds, and carried 
by a 3-0 vote, to adjourn the meeting at 6:30 pm. 

 
 

 

________________________________    _______________________ 

Gary Pranzo, Chairman     Date 

 

 



Development Code Reorganization TOC & Mod 1 v1 
September 19, 2019 

1 

 

Planning and Zoning Commission 
Staff Report 

September 19, 2019 
Agenda Item (5A) 

 
 

 

Project Name: Draft Development Code Reorganization            

Prepared By:  Dana Burkhardt 
Planning Consultant 
 

Reviewed By:  Larry Harmer 
Community Development Director 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
APPLICANT: 
Town of Florence 
Community Development Department 
224 W. 20th Street 
Florence, AZ 85132  
 
OVERVIEW: 

The purpose of this agenda item is to review, comment, and discuss the first drafts of the 
Development Code Reorganization, in the following order:  

1) Table of Contents Proposed Restructure version 1 
2) Module 1 – Administration and Procedures version 1 
3) Temporary Use Permit Process version 1 

 
The attached documents (with exception to Temporary Use Permit Process) are the first 
review drafts as provided on May 16, 2019 and with your September 5 staff report. The 
attached Temporary Use Permit Process draft was introduced to the Planning 
Commission at your September 5 meeting.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Table of Contents Proposed Restructure v1 
Module 1 Administrative Procedures v1 
Temporary Use Permit Process v1 (New) 



  Town of Florence 

        Development Code 

 Reorganization 

Table of Contents 

Proposed Restructuring 

1st Draft: May 3, 2019 



Recommended Development Code Restructuring 

 

Proposed Section Headings: 

TITLE XV: LAND USAGE 

Chapter 150: Development Code 

Section 150.000   Administration and Procedures (0 Series) 

Section 150.100  Definitions (100 Series) 

Section 150.200  Zoning Districts (200 Series) 

Section 150.300  District Use Regulations (300 Series) 

Section 150.400  Regulations Site Improvement Standards (400 Series) 

Section 150.500  Sign Regulations (500 Series) 

Section 150.600  Subdivision Regulations (600 Series) 

Section 150.700  Development Impact Fees (700 Series) 

Section 150.800  Technical Codes 

Chapter 151:  Floodplain Regulations 

Chapter 152:  Medical Marijuana 

 

New Alphanumeric Format: 

Section 150.000   (Section Series Heading) 
 150.001  (Subsection Heading) 
  I.  (Roman Numeral) 
   (A) (Capital Alpha ) 
    (1) (Numeral) 
     a. 
      i.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

Commented [DB1]: Move to Town Code 

Commented [DB2]: Move to Town Code 

Commented [DB3]: Move to Series 300 – District Use 
Regulations 



Full Table of Contents: 

TITLE XV: LAND USAGE 

Chapter 150: Development Code 

Section 150.000   Administration and Procedures (0 Series) 

 150.001   Title 

    150.002   Purpose 

    150.003   Effective date, repeal and severability 

    150.004   Enforcement, interpretation and conflict 

    150.005   Compliance 

   150.006   Injunction 

    150.007   Planning and Zoning Commission 

    150.008   Historic District Advisory Commission  

150.009   Board of Adjustment; appeals 

    150.009   010   Variances 

    150.010   011   Administrative staff 

    150.011   012   Technical Advisory Committee 

150.013  Pre-Application Conference 

150.012   Site plan: Application, content and review 

    150.013   014   Design review 

   150.014   015   Zone changes; amendments 

   150.015   016   Conditional Use Permits 

    150.016   017   Exceptions and modifications 

    150.017   Applications and fees 

    150.018   Building permits and Certificates of Occupancy 

 150.019  Nonconforming use 

    150.020  Enlargement of building or land; destruction 

    150.019   021  Citizen review process 

150.01722   Applications and fees 

Definitions 

Commented [DB4]: Codifying this procedure as practiced 
by the Com Dev Dept. It is currently codified as a procedure 
in the Subdivision Ordinance  

Commented [DB5]: Site Plan review consolidated within 
elements of Design Review, immediately following. 

Commented [DB6]: Moved to end of section 

Commented [DB7]: Moved here from “Regulations 
Section 150.080 and .081” 

Commented [DB8]: Moved from above 



Section 150.100  Definitions (100 Series) 

 150.030   101   Terms and words 

    150.031   102   Defined words 

Zoning Districts 

Section 150.200  Zoning Districts (200 Series) 

150.045   201   Districts 

   150.046   202   District boundaries 

   150.047   District use regulations tables 

   150.048   203   Rural Agricultural (RA-10) 

   150.049   204   Rural Agricultural (RA-4) 

   150.050   205   Single-Residential Ranchette (R1-R) 

   150.051   206  Rural Residential Equestrian Subdivision (RRES) 

   150.052   207   Single-Family Residential (R1-18) 

   150.053   208  Single-Family Residential (R1-6) 

   150.054   209   Neighborhood Multi-Family (R-2) 

   150.055   210   Multiple-Family Residential (MFR) 

   150.056   211   Manufactured Home Subdivision (MHS) 

   150.057   212   Neighborhood Business (B-1) 

   150.058   213   Neighborhood Office (NO) 

   150.059   214   Downtown Commercial (DC) 

   150.060   215   Highway Business Commercial (B-2) 

   150.061   216   Tourist Commercial (TRC) 

   150.062   217   Professional Office (PO) 

   150.063   218   Public/Institutional (P/I) 

   150.064   219   Light Industrial (LI) 

   150.065   220   Heavy Industrial (HI) 

   150.066   221   Overlay Districts; Historic District 

   150.067   222   Parking Overlay District (P-1) 

   150.068   223   Recreational Vehicle Parks and/or Subdivisions 

Commented [DB9]: Moving to 150.300. The existing table 
is the latest and prevailing list of uses. All listed uses under 
the various zoning districts will be removed and refer to this 
table. 

Commented [DB10]: Consider inserting an R1-9 or R1-10 
to give staff room to encourage a larger lot and product 
than the R1-6 



   150.069   224   Planned Unit Development (PUD) 

   150.070   225   Territory Square (TS) 

Regulations 

Part 1.  General Provisions 

Section 150.300  District Use Regulations (300 Series) 

150.301  District Use Regulations Tables 

150.302-330  All Conditional / Temporary Uses and special conditions 

 150.331  Wireless Communications Facilities 

 150.332  Medical Marijuana 

 

Section 150.400  Regulations Site Improvement Standards (400 Series) 

   150.080   Nonconforming use 

   150.081   Enlargement of building or land; destruction 

    150.082   Abandoned or junked vehicles 

Part 8.  Additional Height and Area Regulations and Expectations 

   150.168   Height 

   150.169   Sight triangle 

   150.170   Exception to height restrictions 

   150.171   Structures near airplane runway or landing strip 

   150.172   Exception to minimum property size, lot size and lot width requirements 

   150.173   Adjustment of front yard requirements in all zoning districts 

   150.174   Accessory buildings 

   150.175   Projections into required yards 

   150.176   Access 

   150.177   Maintenance of common areas 

   150.178   Required screening 

   150.179   Special uses 

150.401  Additional Height and Area Regulations and Expectations 

Part 4.  Landscape Standards 

Commented [DB11]: Moved from above 150.047. This 
will include the table of all use classifications for all districts, 
all supplemental use regulations, such as temporary and 
conditional uses, wireless facilities, medical mar. code, etc. 

Commented [DB12]: Move Nonconforming Use regs to 
Administration Procedures above 

Commented [DB13]: Find new location for abandoned 
vehicles, this code is mostly definitions. Consider relocating 
provisions to the Definitions and Parking Code 

Commented [DB14]: Moved from existing Part 8. This 
existing section appears to be a random catch all. The codes 
could be broken out and placed with like/related subject 
matter 



   150.131   Standards 

   150.132   General applicability 

   150.133   Building and occupancy permits 

   150.134   Appropriate use of landscaping 

   150.135   Maintenance 

   150.136   Compliance 

   150.137   Maintenance by Town 

   150.138   Landscape plan and design standards 

   150.139   Design criteria pertaining to specific districts or uses 

   150.140   Planting specifications 

   150.141   Approval by Planning Director 

   150.142   Landscaped areas 

   150.143   Enforcement 

   150.144   Alternate materials 

   150.145   Inspection and approval 

   150.146   Residential landscape design standards 

150.402  Landscape Standards 

Part 5.  Walls and Fences 

   150.147   General applicability 

   150.148   Placement regulations 

   150.149   Design, construction, maintenance and development standards 

   150.150   Barbed wire and electric fences 

150.403  Walls and Fences 

Part 6.  Swimming Pools 

   150.151   General applicability 

   150.152   Location 

   150.153   Enclosures and gates 

   150.154   Exceptions 

   150.155   Permit, inspection and maintenance 

Commented [DB15]: Consolidated to 150.042 – 
Landscape Standards 

Commented [DB16]: Consolidated to 150.403 – Walls 
and Fences 

Commented [DB17]: Consolidated to 150.404 – 
Swimming Pools 



150.404  Swimming Pools 

Part 7.  Parking; Loading and Unloading 

   150.156   Parking areas 

   150.157   Parking standards pertaining to all districts 

   150.158   General requirements for all spaces 

   150.159   Parking standards for nonresidential or mixed-uses 

   150.160   Parking standards for residential uses 

   150.161   Parking standards; calculations 

   150.162   Alternative design standards 

   150.163   Parking space allocation requirements 

   150.164   Off-site loading 

   150.165   Standards for off-street loading facilities 

   150.166   Improvement standards 

   150.167   Compliance 

150.405  Parking; Loading and Unloading 

Part 2.  Outdoor Lighting Control 

   150.083   Intent 

   150.084   Conformance with applicable codes 

   150.085   Approved material and methods of installation 

   150.086   Permanent exemptions; nonconforming fixtures 

   150.087   Request for temporary exemptions 

   150.088   Appeal for temporary exemption 

   150.089   Procedures for code compliance 

   150.090   General requirements 

   150.091   Prohibitions 

150.406  Outdoor Lighting Control 

Part 3.  Sign Regulations 

   150.092   Purpose 

   150.093   Intent 

Commented [DB18]: Consolidated to 150.405 – Parking; 
Loading and Unloading 

Commented [DB19]: Consolidated to 150.406 – Outdoor 
Lighting Control 



   150.094   General applicability 

   150.095   Definitions 

   150.096   Location 

   150.097   Maintenance 

   150.098   Source of illumination; supports 

   150.099   Planned Unit Development 

   150.100   Compliance 

   150.101   Sign area 

   150.102   Sign height 

   150.103   Permitted permanent signs 

   150.104   Total signage 

   150.105   Reader panel signs 

   150.106   Commercial districts 

   150.107   Wall signage 

   150.108   Freestanding monument signage 

   150.109   Directional signs 

   150.110   Directory signs 

   150.111   Drive-through restaurant menu boards 

   150.112   Window signage 

   150.113   Awning signs 

   150.114   Shingle signs and projecting signs 

   150.115   Parapet signs 

   150.116   Total signage 

   150.117   Reader panel signs 

   150.118   Industrial districts 

   150.119   Temporary signs 

   150.120   Subdivision signs 

   150.121   Planned Unit Development directional signs 

   150.122   Submittal and permit requirements 



   150.123   Exceptions; permits not required 

   150.124   Excepted signage 

   150.125   Prohibited signs 

   150.126   Legal nonconforming signs 

   150.127   Signs rendered nonconforming 

   150.128   Signs for a legal nonconforming use 

   150.129   Signs rendered discontinued 

   150.130   Unsafe signs 

Section 150.500  Sign Regulations (500 Series) 

150.092 501 Purpose, Scope and Authority  

150.093 502 Applicability 

150.094 503 Signage Definitions 

150.095 504 Exemptions 

150.096 505 Prohibited Commercial Signs 

150.097 506 Prohibited Sign Locations  

150.098 507 Standards, Limitation and Requirements for All Signs 

150.099 508 Signs for Employment/Commercial and Mixed Use Districts 

150.100 509 Signs for Residential Districts  

150.101 510 Comprehensive Sign Plan Required 

150.102 511 Submittal and Permit Requirements 

150.103 512 Exceptions; Permits Not Required 

150.104 513 Legal Nonconforming Signs 

150.105 514 Signs Rendered Nonconforming 

150.106 515 Abandoned Signs 

150.107 516 Unsafe Signs 

150.108 517 Enforcement and Penalties 

150.109 -130 Reserved 

Part 9.  Wireless Communications Facilities 

   150.180   Purpose 

Commented [DB20]: Consolidated to 150.500 – Sign 
Regulations 



   150.181   Administrative review and approval 

   150.182   Required information 

   150.183   Design criteria 

   150.184   Replacement and/or rebuilding of wireless communications towers 

 

Subdivisions 

Part 1.  General Provisions 

   150.200   Purpose 

   150.201   Intent 

   150.202   Compliance 

   150.203   Modifications 

 

Part 2.  Platting Procedures 

   150.204   Subdivision application procedures 

   150.205   Outline of procedures 

Stage I.  Pre-application 

   150.206   Pre-application conference 

   150.207   Actions by developer 

   150.208   Actions by the Site Plan Review Committee 

   150.209   Notice to proceed 

   150.210   Reservation of certain areas 

 

Stage II.  Preliminary Plat 

   150.211   Application 

   150.212   Procedures and requirements 

   150.213   Information required 

   150.214   Submittal 

   150.215   Guidance for corner lots 

   150.216   Easements 

Commented [DB21]: Moved to Series 300 – District Use 
Regulations 

Commented [DB22]: Site Plan Review Committee is not 
established or discussed elsewhere in codes. Revise to 
Technical Advisory Committee established in Administrative 
section 



   150.217   Basic design requirements 

   150.218   Review 

   150.219   Approval 

   150.220   Significance of preliminary approval 

 

Stage III.  Technical Review 

   150.222   Submittal 

   150.223   Approval 

   150.224   Engineering plan and specification submission 

 

Stage IV.  Final Plat 

   150.225   Scope 

   150.226   Preparation 

   150.227   Information required 

   150.228   Certification 

   150.229   Zoning 

   150.230   Easements 

   150.231   Submittal 

   150.232   Review 

   150.233   Approval 

   150.234   Performance contract 

   150.235   Land survey minimum standards 

   150.236   Map requirements 

 

Part 3.  Design Standards 

   150.237   Generally 

   150.238   Street location and arrangement 

   150.239   Adoption of public works standards, specifications and regulations 

   150.240   Block design 



   150.241   Lot planning 

   150.242   Easement planning 

   150.243   Hillside subdivisions 

   150.244   Special preliminary plat requirements 

   150.245   Plat processing time 

   150.246   Landscaping 

 

Part 4.  Required Improvements 

   150.248   Purpose 

   150.249   Improvement districts 

   150.250   Engineering plans 

   150.251   Construction and inspection 

   150.252   Storm drainage 

   150.253   Sanitary sewage disposal 

   150.254   Water facilities requirements 

   150.255   Garbage disposal 

   150.256   Fire hydrants 

   150.257   Monuments 

   150.258   Lot corner 

   150.259   Street lights 

   150.260   Utilities, electric and telephone 

   150.261   Traffic control signs 

   150.262   Street naming 

   150.263   As-built drawings 

   150.264   Planned Unit Developments 

   150.265   Lot splits not requiring a subdivision 

   150.266   Minor subdivision 

   150.267   Special submission conditions for minor subdivisions 

Development Impact Fees 

Commented [DB23]: Reformatted to 150.600 - 
Subdivisions 



   150.280   Development impact fees 

Section 150.600  Subdivision Regulations (600 Series) 

 150.601  Stage I. Pre-Application 

 150.602  Stage II. Preliminary Plat 

 150.603  Stage III. Technical Review 

 150.604  Stage IV. Final Plat 

 150.605  Subdivision Design Standards 

 150.606  Required Improvements 

 

Section 150.700  Development Impact Fees (700 Series) 

Section 150.800  Technical Codes  

 

Chapter 151:  Floodplain Regulations 

 151.01   National Flood Insurance Program 

   151.99   Penalty 

Chapter 152:  Medical Marijuana 

   152.01   Legislative findings and purpose 

   152.02   Definitions 

   152.03   Conditional use permit and zoning clearance 

   152.04   Distance separation requirements 

   152.05   Security plan 

   152.06   Dispensary hours of operation 

   152.07   Additional conditions and standards 

   152.08   Supplemental materials 

   152.09   Prohibited activities: no non-conforming uses 

   152.10   No town liability; indemnification 

   152.11   Other laws remain applicable 

 

Commented [DB24]: Move to Town Code 

Commented [DB25]: Remove from Development Code 
and locate in Town code 

Commented [DB26]: Remove from Development Code 
and locate in Town code 

Commented [DB27]: Move to 150.300 - Use 
Classifications and Regulations 



  Town of Florence 

        Development Code 

 Reorganization 

Module 1 

Administration and Procedures 

1st Draft: May 3, 2019 



Alphanumeric Format 

Section 150.000 (Section Series Heading) 
150.001 (Subsection Heading) 

I. (Roman Numeral) 
(A) (Capital Alpha) 

(1) (Numeral) 
a.  

i.   
 

TITLE XV: LAND USAGE 

Chapter 150: Development Code 

Table of Contents: 

Section 150.000   Administration and Procedures (0 Series) 

 150.001   Title 

    150.002   Purpose 

    150.003   Effective date, repeal and severability 

    150.004   Enforcement, interpretation and conflict 

   150.005   Compliance 

   150.006   Injunction 

    150.007   Planning and Zoning Commission 

    150.008   Historic District Advisory Commission 

150.008   009   Board of Adjustment; appeals 

    150.009   010   Variances 

    150.010   011   Administrative staff 

150.011   012   Technical Advisory Committee 

150.013  Pre-Application Conference 

150.012   Site plan: Application, content and review 

    150.013   014   Design Review 

   150.014   015  Zone changes; amendments 

   150.015   016   Conditional Use Permits 

    150.016   017   Exceptions and modifications 

Commented [DB1]: Codifying this procedure as practiced 
by the Com Dev Dept. It is currently codified as a procedure 
in the Subdivision Ordinance  

Commented [DB2]: Site Plan review consolidated within 
elements of Design Review. 



    150.017   Applications and fees 

    150.018   Building permits and Certificates of Occupancy 

 150.019  Nonconforming use 

    150.020   Enlargement of building or land; destruction 

    150.019   021   Citizen review process 

150.01722   Applications and fees 

 

Section 150.000   Administration and Procedures (0 Series) 

 
150.001 Title 

These regulations shall be known and cited as “The Development Code of the Town of Florence” 

(hereinafter known as the “Development Code”). 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. I, § 4-1)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) 

150.002 Purpose 

This Development Code of the Town of Florence, Arizona, (hereinafter “town”) is hereby adopted 

for the following purposes: 

I.    (A)   (1)   To promote and protect the health, safety and welfare of the residents of the 

town and to establish land use classifications, dividing the town into districts, imposing 

regulations, prohibitions and restrictions for the promotion of health, safety, convenience, 

aesthetics and welfare, governing the use of land for residential and nonresidential 

purposes, regulating and limiting the height and bulk of buildings and other structures, 

limiting lot occupancy and the size of yards and other open spaces, establishing standards of 

performance and design, adopting a map of the districts, prescribing penalties for violations 

of the Code and repealing all codes in conflict therewith. 

II.       (2)   Furthermore, these regulations are deemed necessary to ensure orderly growth and 

harmonious development of the municipality to ensure adequate traffic circulation through 

coordinated street systems with relation to major thoroughfares, adjoining subdivisions and 

public facilities, achieve individual property lots of reasonable utility and livability, secure 

adequate provisions for water supply, drainage, sanitary sewerage and other health 

requirements, ensure consideration for adequate sites for schools, recreation areas and 

other public facilities, promote the conveyance of land by accurate legal description and to 

provide logical procedures for the achievement of this purpose. In its interpretation and 

application, the provisions of this Development Code are intended to provide a common 

ground of understanding and equitable working relationship between public and private 

interests to the end that both independent and mutual objectives can be achieved in the 

subdivision of land. 

Commented [DB3]: Moved to end of section 

Commented [DB4]: Moved here from “Regulations 
Section 150.080 and .081” 



III.    (B)   This Development Code shall be considered the minimum requirements necessary for 

the promotion of the general plan as amended from time to time, for the protection of the 

citizens of the town. 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. I, § 4-2)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) (Ord. XXX-XX, passed X-X-201X) 

150.003 Effective date, repeal and severability 

 This chapter shall be in full force and effect from and after July 19, 2006. 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. I, § 4-3)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) 

150.004 Enforcement, interpretation and conflict 

I. (A)Enforcement.  The Office of Planning DirectorCommunity Development Director shall 

have the responsibility for enforcement of this Development Code. 

II. (B)Interpretation.  When the provisions of this Development Code are interpreted or 

applied, they shall be held to be the minimum requirements for the promotion of the pubic 

safety, health and general welfare. 

III. (C)Conflict.  The provisions of this Development Code are not intended to interfere with,  

abrogate or annul any code, rule, regulation or permit previously adopted or issued, and not 

in conflict with any provision of this Development Code, or which shall be adopted or issued 

pursuant to law relating to the use of building or Code not in conflict with this Development 

Code; nor is it intended by this Development Code to interfere with, abrogate or annul any 

easement, covenant or other agreement between parties, except when this Development 

Code imposes a greater restriction, this Development Code shall control. 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. I, § 4-4)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) (Ord. XXX-XX, passed X-X-201X) 

150.005 Compliance 

No building or land shall be devoted to any use other than a use permitted in the zoning district in 

which the building or land shall be located, with the exception of the following: 

I.    (A)   Uses lawfully established as of the effective date of this comprehensive amendment, 

see § 150.019 and 150.020; 

II.    (B)   Analogous uses; 

III.    (C)   Accessory uses customarily incidental to the permitted uses; and 

IV.    (D)   Temporary buildings that are used in conjunction with construction work only may be 

permitted in any district during the period that the building is being constructed, but the 

temporary buildings shall be removed upon completion or abandonment of the construction 

work. 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. I, § 4-5(b))  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) (Ord. XXX-XX, passed X-X-201X) 

150.006 Injunction 

I.    (A)   Injunction.  If any building or maintained structure is constructed, reconstructed, 

altered, repaired, converted or any building, structure or land is used in violation of this 

Development Code, the town, any owner or tenant of real property affected by the building 



or structure in question, in addition to other remedies, may institute any appropriate action 

or proceedings: 

(A)       (1)   To prevent the unlawful construction, reconstruction, alteration, repair, 

conversion, maintenance or use; 

(B)       (2)   To prevent the illegal act, conduct, business or use in or about the premises; 

(C)       (3)   To prevent occupancy of the building, structure or land whether improved or 

otherwise; and 

(D)       (4)   To restrain, correct or abate the violation. 

II. (B)   When any action is instituted by an owner or tenant, notice of the action shall be 

served upon the municipality at the time suit is begun by serving a copy of the complaint on 

the Manager or designee thereof. 

III. In any action or proceeding, the court with jurisdiction thereof has the power and in its 

discretionand, in its discretion, may issue a restraining order, or a preliminary injunction, as 

well as a permanent injunction, upon the terms and under the conditions as will do justice 

and enforce the purpose of this Development Code. 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. I, § 4-6)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) (Ord. XXX-XX, passed X-X-201X) 

150.007 Planning and Zoning Commission 

See § 32.105 and 32.106. 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. I, § 4-7)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) 

150.008 Historic District Advisory Commission  

See § 32.070. 

(Ord. XXX-XX, passed X-X-201X) 

150.008150.009 Board of Adjustment; appeals 

I.    (A)   Creation.  There is hereby created a Board of Adjustment, the membership of which 

shall consist of the Mayor and Town Council of the town and, the word BOARD when used in 

this Development Code, shall mean the Mayor and Council when sitting as the Board of 

Adjustment. 

II.    (B)   Meetings, oaths and witnesses.  All meetings of the Board shall be held at the call of 

the Chairperson and at the other times as the Board may determine. All meetings of the 

Board shall be open to the public. The Chairperson, or in the Chairperson's absence, the 

acting Chairperson may administer oaths and compel the attendance of witnesses in 

accordance with the laws of the state. 

III.    (C)   Procedure.  The Board shall make and publish rules and regulations to govern its 

proceedings. The presence of four members shall constitute a quorum. The concurring vote 

of a majority of the Board shall be necessary to reverse an order or decision of an 

administrative official, or to effect any variations from the terms and conditions of this 

Development Code. The minutes and records of all Board proceedings shall be kept and filed 

as public record in the office of the Town Clerk. The Board may call on the administrative 

staff of the municipality for assistance in the performance of its duties, and it shall be the 

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=arizona(florence_az)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:'32.105'%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_32.105
http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=arizona(florence_az)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:'32.106'%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_32.106


duty of the departments to render the assistance to the Board as may be reasonably 

required. 

IV.    (D)   Powers and duties.  The Board of Adjustment shall have the power and jurisdiction to 

hear those matters set forth in this Development Code. 

V.    (E)   Appeals of administrative decisions. 

(A)       (1)   Appeals may be taken to the Board of Adjustment by persons aggrieved or by 

any officer, department, board or bureau of the municipality affected by a decision of an 

administrative official within 30 days by filing with the officer from whom the appeal is 

taken and with the Town Clerk, a notice of appeal specifying the grounds thereof. The 

officer from whom the appeal is taken shall forthwith transmit to the Board all papers 

constituting the record upon which the action appealed from was taken. 

(B)       (2)   An appeal shall stay all proceedings in the matter appealed from, unless the 

officer from whom the appeal is taken certified to the Board that, by reason of the fact 

stated in the certificate, the stay would in the officer's opinion, cause imminent peril to 

life or property. In such case, proceedings shall not be stayed, except by a restraining 

order granted by the Board or by a court of record on application and notice to the 

officer from whom the appeal is taken. The Board shall fix a reasonable time for hearing 

the appeal and give notice thereof to the parties in interest and the public. 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. I, § 4-8)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) (Ord. XXX-XX, passed X-X-201X) 

Cross-reference: 

   For other town boards and commissions, see Ch. 32 

150.009150.010 Variances 

I.    (A)   Application. Application for a variance to property development standards shall be 

made to the Board of Adjustment in the form of a written application. The application shall 

be filed with the Town Clerk upon a form provided by the Town Clerk, and shall be 

accompanied by: 

(A)       (1)   Plans.  Plans and description sufficient to indicate the nature of the project 

involved and the proposed use with ground plans and elevation of all proposed 

buildings, together with an estimate of cost. 

(B)       (2)   Period of approval.  Evidence satisfactory to the Board of Adjustment of the 

ability and intention of the applicant to proceed with actual construction work in 

accordance with the plans within six months after issuance of the variance. 

II.    (B)   Fee.  A filing fee pursuant to the town fee schedule shall accompany each application. 

If the Board of Adjustment finds that it has no jurisdiction to hear the matter, the filing fee 

shall not be refunded to the applicant. From the time of filing the application until the time 

of the hearing, the application and all maps, plans and other accompanying data shall be 

available for public inspection during office hours at the office of the Town Clerk. 

III.    (C)   Hearing and notice. Upon receipt in proper form of any application, the Board of 

Adjustment shall proceed to hold a public hearing upon the application within 45 days after 

the filing at which time all persons shall be given an opportunity to be heard. The Board of 

Adjustment shall cause one notice of the hearing to be published in a newspaper of general 

circulation in the area of the municipality and shall cause to be posted three notices of 

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=arizona(florence_az)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:'Chapter%2032'%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_Chapter32
danab
Comment on Text
Include appeal from P&Z final decision authority. (What processes does PZ make final approval authorities, without appeal to Council?)



hearing, one of which shall be on the subject property and the other two within 300 feet 

thereof, giving at least ten-days’ notice of the hearing, and the time and place where the 

hearing will be held. The notice, both as published and posted, shall also show the nature of 

the variance or exception requested and state that anyone wanting to be heard may appear 

in person or by writing. 

IV.    (D)   Findings.  A variance from the provisions of this Development Code shall not be 

authorized unless the Board shall find upon sufficient evidence: 

(A)       (1)   There are special circumstances or conditions applying to the land, building or 

use referred to in the application which do not apply to other properties in the district; 

(B)       (2)   The special circumstances were not created by the owner or applicant; 

(C)       (3)   The condition or situation of the specific piece of property for which the 

variance is sought is not of so typical or recurrent a nature as to make reasonably 

practicable the formulation of a general regulation for the conditions or situations (if, in 

the Board's opinion, the formulation of a general regulation is more appropriate than a 

variance, the Board shall table its consideration of the application and communicate to 

the Council its recommendation for a general regulation; should the Council not act 

upon the recommendation within 30 days, the Board shall reconsider the application); 

(D)       (4)   The authorizing of the variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment 

of substantial property rights; and 

(E)       (5)   The authorizing of the application will not be materially detrimental to persons 

residing or working in the vicinity, to adjacent property, the neighborhood or the public 

welfare in general. 

V.    (E)   Action.  The Board shall prescribe in connection with any variance the conditions, as 

the Board may deem necessary in order to fully carry out the provisions and intent of this 

Development Code. The conditions may include, among other things, a limitation of the 

time for which the variance shall be valid. Violation of any condition shall be a violation of 

this Development Code, and the violation shall render the variance null and void. 

VI.    (F)   Review.  Any person aggrieved by a decision of the Board may, within 30 days after 

the decision of the Board, and not thereafter, petition the Superior Court to review the 

Board's decision pursuant to A.R.S. § 9-462.06, as amended, and the Superior Court Rules 

for Special Actions. 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. I, § 4-9)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) (Ord. XXX-XX, passed X-X-201X) 

150.010150.011 Administrative staff 

I.    (A)   Creation.  There is hereby created the position of Planning DirectorCommunity 

Development Director who shall be hired by the town. The Planning DirectorCommunity 

Development Director shall be responsible with enforcement of this Development Code. As 

used in this Development Code, PLANNING DIRECTORCommunity Development Director 

shall include staff authorized by the Planning DirectorCommunity Development Director. 

II.    (B)   Powers and duties.  The Planning DirectorCommunity Development Director shall 

perform the following functions: 

(A)       (1)   Enforce this Development Code by ensuring that all activities, construction and 

development within the town are in conformance with the town zoning regulations; 



(B)       (2)   Accomplish all administrative tasks required by this Development Code including 

informing and processing applications for all persons requesting a re-zoning, use permit, 

plan review, variance, appeal or other action of the Planning and Zoning Commission, 

Board of Adjustment or Town Council; and 

(C)       (3)   Subject to the policies of the Planning and Zoning Commission and Town 

Council, interpret this Development Code to members of the public, town departments 

and other branches of government. Serve as planning staff to the Town Council and 

Planning and Zoning Commission, and, as necessary, attend meetings of these and other 

organizations and agencies. 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. I, § 4-10)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) (Ord. XXX-XX, passed X-X-201X) 

150.011150.012 Technical Advisory Committee 

I.    (A)   Creation and composition.  The Technical Advisory Committee (hereinafter 

“Committee”) is created which shall consist of a maximum of nine members, which may 

include the Town Manager, Planning DirectorCommunity Development Director, Building 

Official, Town Engineer, Senior Planner, Economic Development Director, Fire Chief, Police 

Chief and the Public Works Director or designees. 

II.    (B)   Conflict.  When any Committee member has direct pecuniary or proprietary interest in 

any matter before the Committee, the member shall be excused and refrain from 

participating in voting on any matters over which the conflict occurs while being considered 

by the Committee. 

III.    (C)   Meetings.  Meetings shall be at the call of the Planning DirectorCommunity 

Development Director, or designee, or on an as-needed basis. Minutes showing the actions 

of the Committee shall be compiled, distributed to Committee members and a copy shall be 

kept in the Planning and Zoning Department. The Planning DirectorCommunity 

Development Director, or designee, shall serve as Chairperson to the Committee and a 

person designated by the Planning DirectorCommunity Development Director shall serve as 

Secretary. 

IV.    (D)   Intent.  The Committee review of development plans and proposals is intended to 

provide guidance and direction to a prospective applicant, developer or builder in order to 

achieve site development that conforms with the town's general plan, Town Code and 

regulations and its goals for quality development in the community. Technical review is 

intended to promote safe, attractive, harmonious and compatible development within the 

town and is, therefore, considered to be in the interest of the public health, safety and 

general welfare. Complete submittal requirements for technical review are outlined in § 

150.015(B)for the various applications and procedures referenced throughout this 

Development Code. Additional information and exhibits may be required to explain the full 

scope and impacts of a proposal.  Additional information and exceptions to the minimum 

submittal requirements are subject to the discretion of the Community Development 

Director. 

V.    (E)   Powers, duties and jurisdiction.  The Committee shall have power to recommend, 

conditionally recommend or deny any application, not in compliance with this Development 

Code. The applicant shall be responsible for proving that the intent and purpose of this 

Development Code and other applicable provisions of the Town Code will be satisfied. 



(A)       (1)   The Committee, upon hearing an application, may impose reasonable conditions 

to carry out the intent of this Development Code. Violation of any of these conditions 

shall be considered a violation of this Development Code, and shall render any permit 

null and void. 

(B)       (2)   Prior to development, construction, remodel, change or alteration of any project 

subject to technical review, the property owner or designated agent shall secure written 

approval from the Planning DirectorCommunity Development Director or designee. 

Technical review is required for design review applications, multi-family projects, 

manufactured home subdivisions, recreational vehicle parks, commercial and industrial 

developments, public facilities, public and private utilities and other uses identified in 

zoning districts as required by this Development Code 

VI.    (F)   Review. The Committee shall review and comment on all residential, commercial or 

industrial developments which contain four or more dwelling units, businesses or buildings 

but which do not constitute a subdivision. 

VII.     (G)   Planning Commission review.  Subsequent to the review by the Committee, and prior 

to submission to the Town Council, all projects requiring technical review shall appear 

before and present their case to the Planning Commission. The Planning Commission shall 

forward the case (with its recommendation for approval or denial) and any suggested 

stipulations and/or changes to the submission to the Town Council for its review. 

VIII.    (H)   Town Council review. Where required by the provisions of this Development Code, or 

as stipulated to by a Council action on a zoning amendment or otherwise, applications for 

technical review shall also be submitted to the Town Council for consideration following the 

required review by the Committee. When Council review and approval is required of the 

applications, the action of the Committee on the project shall constitute only a 

recommendation. If the Council finds that a site plan does not meet the intent of this 

Development Code or the review criteria, the Council may disapprove the site plan. 

IX.    (I)   Period of approval.  An approved plan shall be valid for a period of 180 days from the 

date of approval and shall become invalid if a building permit has not been issued in that 

time. Up to an additional 180 days may be granted by the Planning Director or designee, 

upon written request of the applicant or Council, when Council review and approval is 

required. 

X.    (J)   Appeal procedure.  An applicant may appeal the decision of the Committee to the 

Town Council if that appeal is made in writing and filed with the Town Clerk within 60 days 

of the Committee's written decision. The appeal shall give the reasons for that appeal and 

the relief requested. The Town Council may affirm, modify or reverse the decision of the 

Committee. Appeals from a Town Council decision shall be heard by a state court of 

competent jurisdiction. 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. I, § 4-11)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) 

150.012150.013 Site Plan: Application, content and review Pre-Application Conference 

The pre-application conference stage of the planning approval process is an exploratory period 

preceding actual preparation of detailed development plans by the applicant. During this time, 

applicants, developers and builders make their intentions known informally to the town, are advised 

of specific public objectives related to the proposed development and are given detailed 

Commented [DB5]: This process reads as it was the initial 
Design Review process. Formal Design Review process is 
now exercised by the Town. This procedural section of the 
Technical Advisory Committee is no longer utilized or 
applicable. 

Commented [DB6]: The “Site Plan” procedure is now 
consolidated with the Design Review process 150.014 

Commented [DB7]: The Pre-Application Conference 
process is and has been practiced by the Com Dev 
Department for past decade, with no fee for application. 
The Pre-application process is referenced in the Design 
Review application and referenced in the Development 
Code for PUD’s. This procedure is practiced in progressive 
communities and is extremely helpful to the applicant and 
town at the onset of a project proposal. Already codified for 
Subdivision applications.  



information regarding approval procedures and requirements. At a minimum, the applicant shall 

submit a site plan (or floor plan for tenant improvements), building elevations, and proposed uses to 

sufficiently convey the scope of the applicant’s intentions for the subject property.  

I.    (A)   Application.  The Town Planning Department shall prescribe the form and content of 

applications and necessary accompanying data. Application shall be filed with the Planning 

Director or designee. Applications shall be made by the owner of the property or an agent 

authorized by a letter from all owners of the property. 

II.    (B)   Content.  A site plan shall include the following information: 

(A)       (1)   Technical review.  An accurate site plan on a minimum 18-inch by 24-inch sheet 

(or other as determined by the Planning Director) drawn at an appropriate scale 

showing the boundaries and dimensions of the site, acreage of the site, a north arrow, 

existing zoning of the site and contiguous property, dimensions and center-lines of all 

streets, dimensions of all alleys and easements bounding or touching the site, 

dimensions from all street center lines to existing curb, gutter, sidewalk, water lines, 

sewer lines and irrigation lines, location, dimensions, direction and bearing of any major 

physical features such as railroads or drainage ways and existing topographic contours 

at intervals of not more than two feet. 

(B)       (2)   Development information.  Proposed grading of the site, proposed public 

dedications, if any, within the site, proposed location, proposed grade, dimensions and 

use of all buildings, structures and signs to be located on the site. 

(C)       (3)   Provisions of services.  Location, quantity and typical stall dimensions of off-

street parking and loading facilities, points of ingress to and egress from the site, 

including width of curb cuts, water, sewer, electric, gas and other public and private 

utility line sizes and locations, internal circulation, refuse collection areas, fire lanes and 

fire hydrants, off-site improvements and street lighting. 

(D)       (4)   Provision of amenities.  Proposed location of open space and recreational 

facilities on the site, location and type of landscaping, location and height of screen 

walls and, location and specifications for any other proposed features of development 

contributing to the use of the site and to the compatibility of the proposed development 

with the surrounding area. 

(E)       (5)   Calculations.  As applicable to the proposed development, calculations shall be 

tabulated on the map for storm water retention, parking spaces, number of dwelling 

units, compute density of dwelling units as provided in the town general plan, area of 

open space, building floor area by category of use and percentage and area of coverage 

of the site. 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. I, § 4-12)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) (Ord. XXX-XX, passed X-X-201X) 

150.013150.014 Design Review 

I. (A)   The purpose of design review is to: 

(A)       (1)   Promote development consistent with the town’s codes, policies, guidelines, 

zoning regulations and overall goals and vision per the town’s general plan; 

(B)       (2)   Ensure that development is compatible and in character with the surrounding 

area; 

Commented [DB8]: Site Plan language merged with 
Design Review 150.014 

Commented [DB9]: Consolidated Site plan submittal 
requirements with Design Review process. The Site Plan 
review requirements are already incorporated in the Design 
Review Application 

Commented [DB10]: Moved to Design Review 

Commented [DB11]: Moved to Design Review  

Commented [DB12]: Moved to Design Review  

Commented [DB13]: Moved to “Parcel Data” under 
Design Review process, below 

Commented [DB14]: Moved from 150.013. Site Plan 
process above is now incorporated under Design Review 
procedures 



(C)       (3)   Provide an opportunity to address site plan, architectural, engineering and other 

development issues at a preliminary level, as requested by the Technical Advisory 

Committee,  to facilitate the subsequent preparation of construction plans, and to assist 

in expediting permitting and development activities; and 

(D)       (4)   Allow an opportunity to review the aesthetic and functional aspects of a 

proposed development or project. 

II. (B)   Projects within planned unit developments, including single-family homes; multiple-

family developments, including condominiums and townhomes; office; commercial; mixed-

use; institutional; and industrial projects, are subject to the design review process if any one 

of the following requirements is met: 

(A)       (1)   Project or development includes new or modified vertical (above grade) 

development or construction components, including permanent signs, that require a 

building permit, except as noted in divisions (C) and (D) below; and/or 

(B)       (2)   Project includes new or modified horizontal project components, such as 

parking areas, driveways, circulation areas, landscape areas, outdoor storage areas, 

retention basins, parks and/or similar site elements, except as noted in divisions (C) and 

(D) below. 

III.   (C)   Grading plans, civil improvement plans, underground utility installations and similar 

projects, as may be determined by the Planning DirectorCommunity Development Director, 

are exempt from the design review process. 

IV.    (D)   Interior remodels or tenant improvements that do not alter the exterior dimensions 

or physical appearance of a structure and/or the historical integrity of a structure within the 

town’s historic district, are exempt from the design review process. 

V.    (E)   Applications for design review shall be submitted to the Planning Department and 

shall contain, where applicable: 

(A)       (1)   Completed design review application forms and fee; 

(B)       (2)   Site plan showing all existing and proposed improvements; rights-of-way; and 

easements;An accurate site plan on a minimum 18-inch by 24-inch sheet (or other as 

determined by the Community Development Director) drawn at an appropriate scale 

showing the boundaries and dimensions of the site, acreage of the site, a north arrow, 

existing zoning of the site and contiguous property, dimensions and center-lines of all 

streets, dimensions of all alleys and easements bounding or touching the site, 

dimensions from all street center lines to existing curb, gutter, sidewalk, water lines, 

sewer lines and irrigation lines, location, dimensions, direction and bearing of any major 

physical features such as railroads or drainage ways and existing topographic contours 

at intervals of not more than two feet; 

(C)       (3)   Parcel data, including parcel number and/or legal description; lot dimensions; 

setbacks; floor area ratio; building heights; lot coverage; and other relevant data Aas 

applicable to the proposed development., cCalculations shall be tabulated on the map 

for storm water retention, parking spaces, number of dwelling units, compute density of 

dwelling units as provided in the town general plan, area of open space, building floor 

area by category of use and percentage and area of coverage of the site.; 

(D)       (4)   Building elevations; 

Commented [DB15]: Had conversation about changes in 
color schemes of historic structures. Should we include 
language to require DR for new paint schemes, or are you 
comfortable as is? 

Commented [DB16]: Consolidated Site Plan submittal 
requirements with Design Review process 

Commented [DB17]: Moved from Site plan review 



(E)       (5)   Conceptual landscape plan Proposed location of open space and recreational 

facilities on the site, location and type of landscaping, location and height of screen 

walls and, location and specifications for any other proposed features of development 

contributing to the use of the site and to the compatibility of the proposed development 

with the surrounding area.; 

(F)       (6)   Preliminary grading and drainage plan for site and development context 

Proposed grading of the site,showing all proposed public dedications, if any, within the 

site,. Site plan shall also include the proposed location, proposed grading and drainage, 

dimensions and use of all buildings, structures and signs to be located on the site.; 

(G)       (7)   Materials and colors exhibits; 

(H)       (8)   Signage plan; 

(I)       (9)   Applicable utility informationLocation, quantity and typical stall dimensions of 

off-street parking and loading facilities, points of ingress to and egress from the site, 

including width of curb cuts, water, sewer, electric, gas and other public and private 

utility line sizes and locations, internal circulation, refuse collection areas, fire lanes and 

fire hydrants, off-site improvements and street lighting.; and 

(J)       (10)   Other ancillary documentation required to complete the review as supported 

by applicable town code and guidelines. 

VI.    (F)   Town staff shall review the design review application for the following: 

(A)       (1)   The proposed development complies with all provisions of this Development 

Code and all other ordinances, master plans, general plans, guidelines, goals, objectives 

and standards of the town; 

(B)       (2)   Building heights, building locations, access points and parking areas of the 

proposed development will not negatively impact adjacent properties or the 

surrounding neighborhood; 

(C)       (3)   The proposed development promotes a functional relationship of structures to 

one another, to open spaces and to topography, both on the site and in the surrounding 

neighborhood; 

(D)       (4)   The height, location, materials, color, texture, area, setbacks and mass, as well 

as parts of any structure (buildings, walls, signs and lighting) and landscaping is 

appropriate to the development, the neighborhood and the community; 

(E)       (5)   Ingress, egress, internal and external traffic circulation, off-street parking 

facilities, loading and service areas, and pedestrian ways are designed as to promote 

safety and convenience; 

(F)       (6)   The architectural character of the proposed structure is in harmony with, and 

compatible to, structures in the neighboring environment and the architectural 

character desired for the town; avoiding excessive variety or monotonous repetition; 

and 

(G)       (7)   All mechanical equipment, appurtenances and utility lines are concealed from 

view and integral to the building and site design. 

VII.    (G)   Town staff will review the design review application materials and will determine 

whether the design review application shall be reviewed by town staff or forwarded to the 

Planning and Zoning Commission. 

VIII.    (H)   Design review applications reviewed by town staff shall include applications for: 

Commented [DB18]: Moved from Site Plan 

Commented [DB19]: Moved from 150.012 B.2 and edited 
as shown 

Commented [DB20]: Moved from Site Plan  



(A)       (1)   Standard architectural plans for single-family, two family, and three-family 

attached production homes, aAttached signs, except where required by the planned 

unit development or comprehensive sign plan or within the historic district; 

(B)       (2)   Landscaping, parks and recreational fields, except for commercial recreational 

facilities; and/or 

(C)       (3)   Projects on less than one acre and/or involving less than 10,000 square feet of 

floor/building area, except for projects within the historic district. 

IX.    (I)   Design review applications can be approved, approved with conditions, or denied. 

Design review decisions rendered by town staff can be appealed within 15 days to the 

Planning and Zoning Commission. 

X.    (J)   Design review applications that are ineligible for staff review or staff reviewed design 

review decisions subject to appeal shall be forwarded for consideration and 

recommendation to the Planning and Zoning Commission. The Planning and Zoning 

Commission shall hear the application at a scheduled meeting, shall review the findings of 

staff, and shall either: 

(A)       (1)   Approve the application; 

(B)       (2)   Deny the application; or 

(C)       (3)   Approve the application with conditions. 

XI.    (K)   If the application is found to be lacking, or in noncompliance with any of the items of 

this Development Code, and adequate resolution cannot be ensured by the applicant, the 

application shall be denied, and the applicant shall be provided a written response by the 

Planning Department, stating the reasons for denial. The applicant may appeal the Planning 

and Zoning Commission’s decision to the Council within 15 days of the decision. The appeal 

letter shall describe the unresolved issues and describe what design solutions are proposed 

by the applicant. The applicant shall be notified of the date of the Town Council meeting to 

consider the appeal a minimum of 15 days prior to the public meeting. The decision of the 

Town Council shall be final. 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. V, § 4-461)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006; Ord. 605-13, passed 2-3-2014) 

(Ord. XXX-XX, passed X-X-201X) 

150.014150.015 Zone changes; amendments 

I.    (A)   Intent.  Regulations set forth in this Development Code and boundaries of zoning 

districts established by the town may be amended, supplemented, changed, modified or 

repealed when deemed necessary to best serve the public interest, health, comfort, 

convenience, safety and general welfare of the citizens of the town. 

II.    (B)   Review.  Upon receipt of an application for an amendment, including requests for use 

permits and special use permits, the Planning DirectorCommunity Development Director or 

designee, shall review the application for completeness and applicability to this 

Development Code and the general plan, comment on the proposal and shall adhere to the 

posting and publication requirements required by state law, including compliance with the 

citizen review process provided in § 150.019021, prior to the public hearing before the 

Planning CommissionPlanning and Zoning Commission. Requests for amendments shall be 

considered by the Planning CommissionPlanning and Zoning Commission for the purpose of 

making a written recommendation, which shall, after holding a public hearing at which 



parties of interest and citizens have been heard, include the reasons for the 

recommendations to the Mayor and Council. 

(A)       (1)   The Town Council may adopt the recommendation of the Commission without 

holding a second public hearing if there is no objection, request for public hearing or 

other protest. 

(B)       (2)   The Town Council shall hold a public hearing if requested in writing by the 

applicant, or by any person appearing in opposition at the Commission hearing, or by 

any person who has filed a written protest, in accordance with state law. 

(C)       (3)   If an application for amendment is denied by Council, or the application is 

withdrawn after Commission hearing, the Commission shall not consider an application 

for the same amendment within one year from the date of the original hearing. 

III.    (C)   Adoption.  Adoption of an amendment may be subject to the conditions as the Council 

deems applicable to enforce this Development Code. If one condition is a schedule for 

development of specific uses for which zoning is requested, and at expiration of that period 

the property has not been developed according to the schedule, it may be reverted to its 

former zoning classification by the Town Council. 

IV.    (D)   Application.  An application for an amendment shall be filed and signed by: 

(A)       (1)   The owner of the property; 

(B)       (2)   One or more of several joint owners of property whose ownership constitutes a 

majority interest in the property; 

(C)       (3)   Seventy-five percent or more of the owners of property in the area to be 

affected, when the application affects more than one property; or 

(D)       (4)   An agent of any property owner(s) authorized to sign as above, when the 

authority of the agent is in writing and filed with the application. 

V.    (E)   Protests.  If the owners of 20% or more of either the area of the lots included in a 

proposed ordinance or zoning map change, or those immediately adjacent in the rear or any 

side extending 150 feet therefrom, or those directly opposite extending 150 feet from the 

street frontage of opposite lots, the property by area and number of lots, tracts and 

condominium units within the Zoning Area of the affected property file a protest in writing 

against a proposed ordinance amendment, the amendment shall not become effective 

except by favorable vote of three-fourths of the Council. If any member of the Council is 

unable to vote because of a conflict of interest, then the required number of votes shall be 

three-fourths of the remaining Council members (provided that required number of votes 

shall not be less than a majority of the full Council). For the purposes of this subsection, the 

vote shall be rounded to the nearest whole number. 

VI.    (F)   Annexation.  Areas, when annexed to the town, shall, until officially zoned by the 

Council, be considered to be zoned to densities and uses no greater than those permitted by 

the county immediately prior to the annexation. 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. I, § 4-13)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) 

150.015150.016 Exceptions and modifications. Conditional Use Permits 

I.    (A)   Purpose.  Because there are some uses, which may be beneficial to have within 

certain zones, and because these uses may not be completely compatible with adjoining or 

nearby permitted uses if not specifically controlled, this division permits these uses after 

Commented [DB21]: HB 2116 amendment updates 

Commented [DB22]: Moved to 150.017 



certain conditions have been met. The process outlined here will allow the Planning and 

Zoning Commission and Council to review and approve or disapprove applications for these 

uses. It will also allow for the modification of an application, if desired, to make it more 

harmonious and compatible with adjoining and/or nearby uses. 

II.    (B)   Permitted uses.  Only those uses listed in the conditional use section of each zone, or 

as otherwise specified in this Development Code, shall be permitted under the process 

provided for by this division. 

III.    (C)   Application.  Application for a conditional use permit shall be made by a property 

owner or authorized agent upon forms provided by the municipality. All information 

requested on the application form must be completed before the application will be 

processed. 

IV.    (D)   Public hearing.  After receipt of a completed application form under this division, 

including filing fee and list of property owners within 300 feet of the property, items shall be 

placed on the Planning and Zoning Commission's agenda for public hearing within 60 days 

after receipt of the application. 

V.    (E)   Notice.  Notice of the public hearing before the Planning and Zoning Commission shall 

be given in the manner established in § 150.014015. In proceedings that are not initiated by 

the property owner, notice of the public hearing shall also be mailed to the owners of 

property within 300 feet of the subject property. This mailing shall occur at least 15 days 

prior to the public hearing. 

VI.    (F)   Action by Commission.  Within 35 days of the public hearing under this division, the 

Planning and Zoning Commission shall recommend approval, approval with conditions or 

disapproval of the application. Notice of the recommendation shall be sent to the Council 

and the applicant. 

VII.    (G)   Review.  In reviewing an application for a conditional use permit, the Planning and 

Zoning Commission shall consider: 

(A)       (1)   The site of the proposed use and the surrounding land uses; 

(B)       (2)   Access to the site; and 

(C)       (3)   The impact on adjoining and surrounding property if the application is approved. 

VIII.    (H)   Conditions.  In making its recommendation, the Planning and Zoning Commission may 

include conditions which are deemed necessary to protect the public health, safety and 

general welfare. These conditions may include, but are not limited to: 

(A)       (1)   Regulation of use; 

(B)       (2)   Special yard requirements; 

(C)       (3)   Special buffers, fences or walls; 

(D)       (4)   Special parking areas; 

(E)       (5)   Street dedications and/or improvements or appropriate bonds; 

(F)       (6)   Regulation of access points; 

(G)       (7)   Sign restrictions; 

(H)       (8)   Required maintenance of yard; 

(I)       (9)   Regulations of odors, noise, light or other special environmental factors; 

(J)       (10)   Restrictions of hours of activity; 

(K)       (11)   Duration of use; 

(L)       (12)   Completion of development; and 



(M)       (13)   Other conditions which will make the proposed use more compatible and 

harmonious with the surrounding land uses. In no case, however, shall these conditions 

be less restrictive than those found in the existing zoning classification. 

IX.    (I)   General requirements.  In addition to any of the above special conditions, the Planning 

and Zoning Commission and Council shall impose the following general requirements on 

every conditional use permit which is granted: 

(A)       (1)   No conditional use approval shall be final until all conditions imposed have been 

met; 

(B)       (2)   All of the special conditions shall constitute restrictions which run with the land 

and which shall be binding upon the owner of the land, successors or assigns; 

(C)       (3)   The special conditions imposed by the Planning and Zoning Commission and/or 

Council shall be consented to in writing by the applicant prior to issuance of a 

conditional use permit; and 

(D)       (4)   The resolution of the Council granting the application together with all consent 

forms shall be recorded by the Recorder of the county. 

X.    (J)   Action by Council.  Upon receipt of a recommendation under this division from the 

Planning and Zoning Commission, the Council shall approve, approve with conditions or 

deny the application. Before acting on the application, the Council may hold a public hearing 

on the application. If it does, notice of the hearing will be in compliance with § 150.014015. 

If it does or does not hold a public hearing, the Council will approve, approve with 

conditions or disapprove the application within 30 days of receiving a recommendation from 

the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

XI.    (K)   Protests.  If written protests are received to an application filed under this 

Development Code, the regulations of § 150.014015(EV.) shall apply. 

XII.    (L)   Revocation.  The Council, acting on the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning 

Commission or on its own, may revoke any conditional use permit for noncompliance with 

any of the conditions set forth in the resolution granting the permit. This revocation shall 

occur by resolution of the Council after a public hearing, notice for which shall be in 

accordance with § 150.014015. Written notice of the possibility of revocation shall be 

mailed to the applicant or successor not less than 30 days prior to the Council meeting at 

which the issue will be discussed. The revocation of a conditional use permit shall have the 

effect of denying all rights and privileges granted by the approval of the conditional use 

permit. 

XIII.    (M)   Time limit.  If an established time limit for development expires or if a time limit for 

the duration of the carrying on of the conditional use has been established as a of the 

condition of approval, the permission for the use shall be considered to be revoked upon 

the date of expiration without any notification to the applicant or successor. 

XIV.    (N)   Alteration of structures. Any proposed changes, either additions, enlargements or 

modifications of the structures approved in any conditional use permit or any proposed 

extension of the uses into areas approved in any permit shall follow the same process as 

outlined in this division. No building permit for any change shall be issued unless the Council 

has approved the change. 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. I, § 4-14)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) (Ord. XXX-XX, passed X-X-201X) 



150.016150.017 Applications and fees. Exceptions and modifications 

Regulations specified in this Development Code shall be subject to the following exceptions, 

modifications and interpretations: 

I.    (A)   Extension of time.  Under special conditions, the Council may grant extensions of time 

unless otherwise set forth in this Development Code. 

II.    (B)   Use of existing lots of record.  In any district where dwellings are permitted, a single-

family dwelling may be located on any lot or plot of official record that existed on the 

effective date of this Development Code, which does not meet area and/or width 

requirements of this Development Code. 

III.    (C)   Structures permitted above the height limit.  Building height limitations of this 

Development Code may be modified as follows: public, semi-public or public service 

buildings, sanitariums, schools, churches and temples, when permitted in a district, may 

have the applicable height limit waived by the Town Council, provided that each setback is 

increased one foot for each foot of additional building height above the height limit 

otherwise provided in that district. 

IV.    (D)   Area requirements.  In any residential district where neither the public water supply 

nor public sanitary sewer is accessible, lot area and frontage requirements shall be 

consistent with county or state health requirements and meet the minimum requirements 

of the zone district in which it is located. 

V.    (E)   Other exceptions to yard requirements. Every part of a required yard shall be open to 

the sky, unobstructed by any structure, except for permitted accessory buildings, and except 

for ordinary projections of sills, bay windows, cornices and other features permitted 

elsewhere in this Development Code. 

VI.    (F)   Mixed-use yard requirements.  When buildings are erected containing two or more 

uses housed vertically, required side yards for the first floor use shall control. 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. I, § 4-15)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) 

150.017150.018 Building Permits and Certificates of Occupancy 

Neither building permits nor certificates of occupancy may be issued until the use of building(s) and 

land conforms with this Development Code and all other applicable codes and ordinances. 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. I, § 4-17)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) (Ord. XXX-XX, passed X-X-201X) 

I.    (A)   Applications.  Applications for use permits, appeals, variances, amendments and 

design review shall be made in the Office of the Planning Director on forms provided. 

Applications shall contain the following information supplied by the applicant: 

(A)       (1)   Vicinity ownership map.  Drawn to scale, at least eight and one-half inches by 11 

inches, showing all parcels adjacent to and surrounding the property within a radius of 

150 feet from exterior boundaries. 

(B)       (2)   Ownership lists.  Typed in the form of mailing labels, containing complete names 

and mailing addresses of owners and parcel designations within a radius of 300 feet of 

the boundaries of the property. 

Commented [DB23]: Application and Fees Section moved 
to 150.022  



(C)       (3)   Plot plan.  Drawn to scale, at least eight and one-half inches by 11 inches by 17 

inches, or as otherwise required by this Development Code, showing dimensions of the 

property, name and width of the internal and abutting streets, roads or alleys and 

existing buildings, fences and easements (with distances to property lines). 

(D)       (4)   Legal description of property.  Either lot or tract of a recorded subdivision, or 

metes and bounds description prepared by a registered Engineer and licensed land 

surveyor and map of the same. 

(E)       (5)   Letter of explanation.  Explaining the nature and intent of the proposed 

development, reasons justifying the request and expected effects upon surrounding 

neighborhoods and the town at- large. 

(F)       (6)   Additional materials.  Development plans, elevations, maps and other materials 

may be required (in accordance with other stipulations of this Development Code). 

II.    (B)   Fees.  Fees for all matters pertinent to the administration of this Development Code 

will be set from time to time by resolution of the Town Council, including but not limited to 

the following: 

(A)       (1)   General plan amendment; 

(B)       (2)   Request for re-zoning or special use; 

(C)       (3)   Code text amendment; 

(D)       (4)   Design review; 

(E)       (5)   Appeal of site plan decision to Town Council; 

(F)       (6)   Amendment to an approved site plan; 

(G)       (7)   Use permit; 

(H)       (8)   Variance; 

(I)       (9)   Code interpretation; 

(J)       (10)   Extension of re-zoning, special use, use permit or variance; 

(K)       (11)   Continuance of application hearing at applicant's request; 

(L)       (12)   Landscape plans review; 

(M)       (13)   Landscape inspection fee; 

(N)       (14)   Right-of-way and easement abandonment fee; and 

(O)       (15)   Annexation initiated by land owner. 

III.  (C)   Refunds.  Application fees shall not be refundable. 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. I, § 4-16)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) 

150.018150.019 Building Permits and Certificates of OccupancyNonconforming use 

I.    (A)   Continuance of use of land; abandonment.  The lawful use of land existing on July 19, 

2006, although not conforming to the provisions hereof for the land, may be continued, but 

if the nonconforming use is abandoned, and a nonconforming use discontinued for a period 

of three months, it is presumed abandoned, then any future use of the land shall be in 

conformity with the provisions of this Development Code. 

II.    (B)   Continuance of use of building or land.  The lawful use of a building or land existing on 

July 19, 2006 may be continued, although the use does not conform with the provisions of 

this Development Code for the building or land and the use may be continued providing only 

reasonable repairs and alterations are made. Whenever a nonconforming use of a building 

Commented [DB24]: Building Permits and C of O moved 
above 

Commented [DB25]: Moved from “Regulations; Part 1 
General Provisions; 150.080.” Out of place as is, this is an 
administrative interpretive procedure, more than a 
“General Provision” 



or land has been changed to a more restricted use or to a conforming use, the use shall not 

thereafter be changed to a less restricted use or a nonconforming use. 

III.    (C)   Abandonment of use of building or land.  In the event that a nonconforming use of 

any building is abandoned, and a nonconforming use discontinued for a period of three 

months is presumed abandoned, then any future use of the building or land shall be in 

conformity with the provisions of this Development Code. 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. IV, § 4-91)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) (Ord. XXX-XX, passed X-X-201X) 

Neither building permits nor certificates of occupancy may be issued until the use of building(s) and 

land conforms with this Development Code and all other applicable codes and ordinances. 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. I, § 4-17)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) 

   

150.019150.020 Citizen Review ProcessEnlargement of building or land; destruction 

I.    (A)   Enlargement, extension, reconstruction or structural alteration of building or land.  No 

existing building or land designed, arranged or intended for or devoted to a use not 

permitted under the regulations of this Development Code for the district in which the 

building or land is located shall be enlarged, extended, reconstructed or structurally altered 

unless the building and the enlargement, extension, reconstruction and structural 

alterations, and further use hereof, conform in every respect with the regulations specified 

by this Development Code for the district in which the building or land is located, provided 

nothing herein shall prohibit any reasonable repairs or alterations in a building or land used 

for the existing purposes. 

II.    (B)   Destruction of building or land.  If at any time any building or land in existence or 

maintained on July 19, 2006, which does not conform to the regulations for the district in 

which it is located, shall be destroyed by fire, explosion, during modification, remodeling, 

renovation or acts of God or acts of the public enemy to the extent of 50% of its value as 

determined by three competent appraisers, then and without further action by the Council, 

the building and the land on which the building was located or maintained shall from and 

after the date of the destruction be subject to all the regulations specified by this 

Development Code for the district in which the land and building are located. 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. IV, § 4-92)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) (Ord. XXX-XX, passed X-X-201X) 

 

III.     (A)   Neighborhood meeting.  Prior to any public hearing, as required under § 150.014, on 

any application for any zoning ordinance that changes any property from one zoning district 

to another, a use or special use permit application that imposes any regulation not 

previously imposed, or that removes or modifies any regulation previously imposed, the 

Planning Director or designee, shall require the applicant to conduct a neighborhood 

meeting or an acceptable alternative prior to a public hearing to consider the proposal. A 

written notice of the application shall be mailed to all adjacent landowners of the property 

that is subject to a re-zoning, use or special use permit application and to the other persons 

as the Planning Director or designee reasonably determines to be other potentially affected 

Commented [DB26]: Moved from “Regulations; Part 1 
General Provisions; 150.081.” This section is a part of and 
expands on above “Nonconforming use” regulation 

Commented [DB27]: Citizen review process moved to 
150.021 



citizens. In determining the number of potentially affected citizens, the Planning Director or 

designee, shall review the density and intensity of residential development in the general 

vicinity, the existing street system and other factors that may be related to the zoning or use 

permit's impact on the character of the neighborhood. 

IV.    (B)   Written notice.  The written notice shall also include a general explanation of the 

substance of the proposed re-zoning, use permit or special use permit application and shall 

state the date, time and place scheduled for a neighborhood meeting, at which any adjacent 

landowner(s) or those other potentially affected citizens, will be provided a reasonable 

opportunity to express any issues or concerns that the landowner or citizen may have with 

the proposed zoning or use permit application. 

V.    (C)   Publication.  At the discretion of the Planning Director, written notice shall be given at 

least 15 days before the neighborhood meeting in at least one of the following methods: 

(A)       (1)   The notice shall be published once in a newspaper of general circulation 

published or circulated in the town. 

(B)       (2)   The notice shall be posted upon the sign required in § 150.014 unless waived by 

the Planning Director or designee. 

(C)       (3)   The notice shall be mailed in accordance with the same procedures, and 

delivered in accordance with the provisions of § 150.014. 

VI.    (D)   Time, date and location.  The Planning Director, upon consultation with the applicant, 

shall establish a time, date and place for the neighborhood meeting that provides a 

reasonable opportunity for the applicant, adjacent landowners and those other potentially 

affected citizens to discuss and express their respective views concerning the application 

and any issues or concerns that they may have with the zoning or re-zoning ordinance and 

use permit proposed by the application. The Planning Director or designee shall attend the 

meeting, but is not required to conduct the meeting. The Planning Director or designee shall 

report the results of the neighborhood meeting to the Planning and Zoning Commission and 

Mayor and Town Council at the time as they take action on the application. 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. I, § 4-18)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) (Ord. XXX-XX, passed X-X-201X) 

150.021 Citizen Review Process 

I. Neighborhood meeting.  Prior to any public hearing, as required under § 150.015, on any 

application for any zoning ordinance that changes any property from one zoning district to 

another, a use or conditional special use permit application that imposes any regulation not 

previously imposed, or that removes or modifies any regulation previously imposed, the 

Community Development Director or designee, shall require the applicant to conduct a 

neighborhood meeting or an acceptable alternative prior to a public hearing to consider the 

proposal. A written notice of the application shall be mailed to all adjacent landowners of 

the property that is subject to a re-zoning, use or special use permit application and to the 

other persons as the Community Development Director or designee reasonably determines 

to be other potentially affected citizens. In determining the number of potentially affected 

citizens, the Community Development Director or designee, shall review the density and 

intensity of residential development in the general vicinity, the existing street system and 

other factors that may be related to the zoning or use permit's impact on the character of 

the neighborhood. 

Commented [DB28]: Moved from 150.019 for clarity and 
flow. No changes to text except alpha-numeric update, and 
updated cross references 

Commented [DB29]: Reference number updated 

Commented [DB30]: Corrected reference 



II. Written notice.  The written notice shall also include a general explanation of the substance 

of the proposed re-zoning, use permit or special use permit application and shall state the 

date, time and place scheduled for a neighborhood meeting, at which any adjacent 

landowner(s) or those other potentially affected citizens, will be provided a reasonable 

opportunity to express any issues or concerns that the landowner or citizen may have with 

the proposed zoning or use permit application. 

III. Publication.  At the discretion of the Community Development Director, written notice shall 

be given at least 15 days before the neighborhood meeting in at least one of the following 

methods: 

(A) The notice shall be published once in a newspaper of general circulation published or 

circulated in the town. 

(B) The notice shall be posted upon the sign required in § 150.015 unless waived by the 

Community Development Director or designee. 

(C) The notice shall be mailed in accordance with the same procedures, and delivered in 

accordance with the provisions of § 150.015. 

IV. Time, date and location.  The Community Development Director, upon consultation with the 

applicant, shall establish a time, date and place for the neighborhood meeting that provides 

a reasonable opportunity for the applicant, adjacent landowners and those other potentially 

affected citizens to discuss and express their respective views concerning the application 

and any issues or concerns that they may have with the zoning or re-zoning ordinance and 

use permit proposed by the application. The Community Development Director or designee 

shall attend the meeting, but is not required to conduct the meeting. The Community 

Development Director or designee shall report the results of the neighborhood meeting to 

the Planning and Zoning Commission and Mayor and Town Council at the time as they take 

action on the application. 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. I, § 4-18)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) (Ord. XXX-XX, passed X-X-201X) 

150.022 Applications and fees 

I. Applications.  Applications for use permits, appeals, variances, amendments and design 

review shall be made in the Office of the Community Development Director on forms 

provided. Applications shall contain the following information supplied by the applicant: 

(A) Vicinity ownership map.  Drawn to scale, at least eight and one-half inches by 11 inches, 

showing all parcels adjacent to and surrounding the property within a radius of 150 feet 

from exterior boundaries. 

(B) Ownership lists.  Typed in the form of mailing labels, containing complete names and 

mailing addresses of owners and parcel designations within a radius of 300 feet of the 

boundaries of the property. 

(C) Plot plan.  Drawn to scale, at least eight and one-half eighteen inches by 11 inches by 17 

24 inches, or as otherwise required by this Development Code, showing dimensions of 

the property, name and width of the internal and abutting streets, roads or alleys and 

existing buildings, fences and easements (with distances to property lines). 

(D) Legal description of property.  Either lot or tract of a recorded subdivision, or metes and 

bounds description prepared by a registered Engineer and licensed land surveyor and 

map of the same. 

Commented [DB31]: Reference number updated 

Commented [DB32]: Reference number updated 

Commented [DB33]: Moved from 150.017, no changes to 
text unless noted 

Commented [DB34]: Updated plan size to be consistent 
with existing Design Review / Site plan requirement. 
(manually edited) 



(E) Letter of explanation.  Explaining the nature and intent of the proposed development, 

reasons justifying the request and expected effects upon surrounding neighborhoods 

and the town at- large. 

(F) Additional materials.  Development plans, elevations, maps and other materials may be 

required (in accordance with other stipulations of this Development Code). 

II. Fees.  Fees for all matters pertinent to the administration of this Development Code will be 

set from time to time by resolution of the Town Council, including but not limited to the 

following: 

(A) General plan amendment; 

(B) Request for re-zoning or special use; 

(C) Code text amendment; 

(D) Design review; 

(E) Appeal of site plan decision to Town Council; 

(F) Amendment to an approved site plan; 

(G) Use permit; 

(H) Variance; 

(I) Code interpretation; 

(J) Extension of re-zoning, special use, use permit or variance; 

(K) Continuance of application hearing at applicant's request; 

(L) Landscape plans review; 

(M) Landscape inspection fee; 

(N) Right-of-way and easement abandonment fee; and 

(O) Annexation initiated by land owner. 

III. Refunds.  Application fees shall not be refundable. 

(Prior Code, Ch. 4, Art. I, § 4-16)  (Ord. 432-06, passed 6-19-2006) (Ord. XXX-XX, passed X-X-201X) 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  Town of Florence 

        Development Code 

 Reorganization 

Module 1 - Temporary
Use Permit Procedures 1st 

Draft: August 30, 2019 



August 30, 2019 ‐ 1st Review Draft 

150.017 Temporary Use Permits 

I. Purpose.  Because there are certain uses intended to be temporary in nature, this section
establishes a process for review and approval of certain uses that are intended to be a
limited duration of time and will not permanently alter the character or physical facilities of
the site where they occur. The process outlined here will allow the Community
Development Director and the Planning and Zoning Commission to review and approve or
disapprove applications for temporary uses. It will also allow for the modification of an
application, if desired, to make it more harmonious and compatible with adjoining and/or
nearby uses.

II. Permitted uses.  Only those uses listed in the temporary use section of each zone, or as
otherwise specified in this Development Code, shall be permitted under the process
provided for by this division.

III. Permit Procedures.

(A) Application.  Application for a temporary use permit shall be made by a property owner
or authorized agent upon forms provided by the municipality. All information requested
on the application form must be completed before the application will be processed.
Applicant may apply for approval of a temporary use not less than 45 days before the
use is intended to begin accompanied by payment of the required fee.

(B) Required Findings. The decision‐making authority (Community Development Director,
Planning and Zoning Commission, or Town Council, as applicable) may approve an
application for a Temporary Use Permit to allow a temporary use for a period of time,
only upon making all of the following findings:
(1) The proposed use will not unreasonably affect or have a negative impact on

adjacent properties, their owners and occupants, or the surrounding neighborhood,
and will not in any other way constitute a nuisance or be detrimental to the health,
safety, peace, comfort, or general welfare of persons residing or working in the area
of such use or to the general welfare of the Town;

(2) The proposed use is consistent with a land use permitted by the present Zoning
District within which the site is located, or a land use considered permitted by a
Zoning District listed in the General Plan as being consistent with the General Plan
land use designation of the site;

(3) The proposed use will not unreasonably interfere with pedestrian or vehicular traffic
or circulation in the area surrounding the proposed use, and will not create a
demand for additional parking that cannot be safely and efficiently accommodated
by existing parking areas; and

(4) Appropriate controls are in place that will ensure the premises will be kept clean,
sanitary, free of litter, and all circulation and parking surfaces will include a suitable
dust‐controlled surface.

(C) Approvals. The Community Development Director may approve an application for a
Temporary Use Permit to allow a temporary use for a period of time not to exceed 45
days. All temporary use requests for a period of time exceeding 45 days may be
approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission. Temporary Use Permits shall be valid
for a maximum period of two years.



August 30, 2019 ‐ 1st Review Draft 

(D) Conditions. In approving a Temporary Use Permit, the decision‐making authority may
impose reasonable conditions deemed necessary to achieve the findings for a
Temporary Use Permit listed above, including but not limited to:
(1) Regulation of vehicular ingress and egress and traffic circulation;
(2) Regulation of dust control surfaces;
(3) Regulation of lighting;
(4) Regulation of hours, total number of events/duration for the permit, and other

characteristics of operation;
(5) Submission of final plans to ensure compliance with conditions of approval;
(6) Requirement of bonds or other guarantees for cleanup or removal of structure or

equipment; and
(7) Such other conditions as the decision‐making authority may deem necessary to

carry out the intent and purpose of this section.
(E) Appeals. The Director’s decision may be appealed to the Planning and Zoning

Commission if a written request from the applicant is received by the Community
Development Department within 5 business days after the Director’s final decision.
Appeals will be heard, and a final decision will be rendered by the Planning and Zoning
Commission at their next regular meeting after seven (7) calendar days from receipt of
the appeal. The Planning and Zoning Commission’s decision may be appealed to the
Town Council if a written request from the applicant is received by the Community
Development Department within 5 business days after the Commission’s final decision.
Council’s consideration of the appeal will be scheduled at a time to be determined by
the Town Clerk.

IV. Notice.  Notice of the proposed Temporary Use Permit shall be posted on the subject
property for a period of 15 days prior to the date scheduled for final decision of the request.
Notice shall also be mailed to property owners within 300 feet of the property boundaries
proposed for the Temporary Use. Additional notification may be required at the Community
Development Director’s discretion.

V. Revocation.  The decision‐making authority may revoke any Temporary Use Permit for
noncompliance with any of the conditions set forth in granting the permit. This revocation
shall occur after a public hearing, notice for which shall be in accordance with §150.015.
Written notice of the possibility of revocation shall be mailed to the applicant and property
owner not less than 30 days prior to the meeting at which the issue will be discussed. The
revocation of a Temporary Use Permit shall have the effect of denying all rights and
privileges granted by the approval of the use permit.

VI. Time limit.  If an established time limit for the Temporary Use Permit expires or if a time
limit for the duration of the carrying on of the use has been established as a of the condition
of approval, the permission for the use shall be considered to be revoked upon the date of
expiration without any notification to the applicant.

VII. Effective Dates.
(A) Permit Period 45 Days or Less. A Temporary Use Permit issued for 45 days or less shall

become effective on the date the permit is approved by the decision‐making authority.



August 30, 2019 ‐ 1st Review Draft 

(B) Permit Period More than 45 Days. A Temporary Use Permit for more than 45 days shall
become effective seven days from the date the permit is approved by the decision‐
making authority.



 

APN 200-46-005R  
PZ-19-30 

September 19, 2019 
1 

 

Planning and Zoning Commission 
Staff Report 

September 19, 2019 
Agenda Item 6A 

 
 

Project Name: Design Review for Pinal County Attorney’s Building 
APN 200-46-005R 
PZ-19-30 
 

Prepared By:  Larry C. Harmer 
    Community Development Director 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
REQUEST: 
 
A Design Review application for the proposed Pinal County Attorney’s Building located at 
971 Jason Lopez Circle. 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS: 
 
This structure will add to the Pinal County Judicial and Public Safety Complex is generally 
bounded by Diversion Dam Road on the south, State Highway 79 on the west, North 
Bowling Road on the east, and the CCA property on the north. The proposed structure, 



 

APN 200-46-005R  
PZ-19-30 

September 19, 2019 
2 

 

when completed, will be the western most building in the complex and will face Jason 
Lopez Circle within the complex.  The new office will replace and supplement existing 
offices near the Pinal County Courthouse complex located near central “Old Town” 
Florence. This will be one of two new buildings that the County is developing to replace 
and/or supplement current, older facilities. 
 
This newest addition to the County’s Judicial and Public Safety Complex appears to 
demonstrate the evolution of modern design that the County has embraced throughout the 
complex.  The new Attorney’s Building is scheduled to be 76’ tall (5’ lower than the adjacent 
Court building) and include 5 stories of internal space for offices, meeting rooms and 
employee facilities.  The total combined floor area of the 5 stories is 56,000 square feet.  
The building’s architectural features are noted in detail in the applicant’s Project 
Narrative in the attached project packet.  In short, the building has been designed to: 
reduce direct sunlight from penetrating into the office while protecting views out from the 
office spaces; provide security to the ground floor offices; maximize public safety entering 
and exiting the building; reduce exterior maintenance; and minimize solar heat gain, 
thereby, maximizing the energy efficiency of the structure. The finish materials on the 
exterior are exhibiting predominately earth tone colors with modern materials and textures.  
(Material samples will be available at the September 19, 2019 meeting)   
 
Public access to the building is off State Highway 79 to Jason Lopez Circle.  Controlled and 
gated employee access is located on the south side of the building off Diversion Dam Road.  
Additional secured employee parking is being added to the south of the proposed building. 
The entire complex is currently ‘over-parking’ at approximately 850 parking stalls and there 
is adequate parking for the public and employees alike. Emergency access is available from 
the north and south sides of the building.  Appropriate turning radii required by the Town’s 
largest fire apparatus is accommodated.   
 
Appropriate grading and retention will be done in accordance with Town codes; however, 
the majority of grading and drainage issues were addressed in 2004 when the site was 
originally developed.  Existing landscaping on the site will be enhanced and complimented. 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
Under Arizona Revised Statutes, Title 9, Section 462.04 and the Town of Florence 
Development Code; a public hearing and a community meeting are not required for 
Design Review. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff finds that the request is in compliance with applicable Town codes and is in keeping 
with the character established for this area.  The Planning and Zoning Commission may 
move to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the Design Review application for PZ-
19-30.  Should the Commission move to approve this application, staff suggests the 
following Conditions: 



 

APN 200-46-005R  
PZ-19-30 

September 19, 2019 
3 

 

 
1. The Design Review approval shall expire in one year from the date of approval if 

a building permit is not issued for the subject construction. 
 

2. The Project shall comply with all applicable Town codes, including, but not limited 
to, building, fire and engineering codes. 
 

3. Any exterior lighting shall be in compliance with applicable light control restrictions. 
 

4. All utility boxes, back flow preventers and similar equipment shall be painted to 
match the surrounding buildings. 
 

5. Final grading and drainage plans are subject to the review and approval of the 
Town Engineer and such approvals might result in minor modifications to the 
proposed site plan. 
 

6. Compliance with this Design Review approval shall be required prior to issuance 
of a Final Certificate of Occupancy. 
 

7. Any additional conditions deemed necessary by the Planning Commission 



6225 North 24th Street, Suite 250 

Phoenix, AZ 85016 

  

 Phoenix and locations worldwide 

 

28 August 2019 

 
Planning Commission 
Town of Florence, Arizona 85132 
 
Re: Project Name:  Pinal County Attorney’s Office 

DLR Group Project No.:  30-19101-00 
 
Esteemed Chairman Pranzo, Commissioners, Town Staff:  
 

We are very pleased to present our work for the Pinal County Attorney’s Office for your consideration. We 
have put forth our utmost effort to provide a project which will satisfy the county’s needs on a modest budget and 
serve as a building which the town can be proud of. This design has been optimized in many ways to make it 
affordable, eco-friendly, efficient and attractive. We believe it tells a fantastic story about how much can be 
achieved with hard work, trust and collaboration. 

Please find attached Project Narrative, Site Plan, and Elevations. 
We look forward to having our project appear before the Commission and we welcome your feedback. 

 
Sincerely, 
DLR Group 

 
 

 
David R Lyon  
Project Architect 
 
  



Planning Commission 
28 August 2019 
Page 2 
 

 

PROJECT NARRATIVE 
 
Project Requirements  

 
The requirements for the Pinal County Attorney’s Office were tough. The building was to be five stories 

but not as tall as the four-story courthouse. It was to house a huge number of spaces in 60,000 square feet, but 
our initial test fit showed 66,000 square feet would be needed. The county attorney requested that it be modern 
and state-of-the-art in order to attract the best talent coming out of law school, but we sensed that a modern 
design might feel out of place. It was to be environmentally sensible, have excellent daylight and views, have a 
transparent workplace where people knew what you were doing, and connect directly to the courthouse but still 
feel clearly distinct from the courthouse so that no one will feel like the attorneys and the judges were on the 
same team. All of this needed to be accomplished on an extremely thin budget. 

 
 

Our Approach 

 
1 Our team at DLR Group made economizing the building the highest priority. If we could not get 

within budget there would simply be no building. Every aspect of the building had to be optimized; 
zero wasted space.  

 
2 Character was crucial. We studied Florence and the surrounding desert looking for an 

architectural language that would be appropriate. We found no shortage of examples of historic 
homes, churches, institutional offices and facilities. We considered these as well as native 
architecture and nature itself to identify materials and forms that seemed to make sense in 
Florence. 

 
3 Every part of the building had to measure up to our design philosophy. Once we had the concept 

in mind, everything had to belong. 
 

 
The Design 

 
 We might have attempted a building which was a huge version of something historic, but we felt that 
would come across as fake, like a 25-story roman palace in Las Vegas feels fake. That may be fun for a weekend, 
but this is your home. We believed something more authentic was in order. We could have pursued a traditional 
and stately institutional building, but this was financially out of reach. In fact, our estimator told us that a stucco 
box building with no windows was not in our budget.  
 

We turned to the desert for inspiration on how to get by when resources are tight. The noble saguaro 
cactus became our main inspiration. It is a case study in the rigors of life in the desert. Every aspect of the plant is 
optimized to accomplish as much as possible with as little as possible. The ribs of the cactus provide structural 
stability, allow the entire cactus to expand and contract with water changes, and provide self-shading which 
breaks sunlight up into smaller areas which shift continually, preventing any one area of the cactus skin from 
overheating. These adaptations and many others not only make the saguaro viable, they make it beautiful and 
distinct. 
 
 We might have tried to dress up a box to look like a saguaro, but we chose instead to emulate its 
economy. Where the building faced many demands; gravity, heat, rain, energy, financial limits, client goals, 
aesthetics; we made sure that every component served several purposes. We did so with the belief that elegant 
solutions would be beautiful.  
 

We started by shrinking the building. We tied the design down to a table and punched it in the gut over 
and over until it was lean and mean. Then we made it run laps to get the last few ounces of fat out. This reduced 
building square footage from 66,000 to 56,000. Height reduced by 14%. We reduced the building skin by 18% and 



Planning Commission 
28 August 2019 
Page 3 
 

 

the building volume by 22%. The amount of un-occupiable volume (for ducts and pipes) was reduced by 37%. This 
required a great deal of special engineering. These reductions got us close to budget but a myriad of other 
innovations would be necessary. 
 
 The metal panel skin is ribbed and breaks sunlight up onto shifting areas, which have a larger surface 
area, allowing heat load to shift and redistribute for longer periods until natural air convection can cool the ribs. 
The skin of each floor is independent of the others allowing it to shift with floor deflections and thermal 
expansion due to temperature changes. The metal panel has a very long life, is maintenance-free, sheds water 
naturally and breathes to expel water vapor. Where windows were desired, instead of punching holes in the wall, 
we angled the wall system out from the building and used it as a shade device, maintaining the look of a 
continuous protective skin around a delicate interior. The shade fins are made of perforated metal that you can 
see through horizontally, but the sun won’t penetrate because of its steep angle in the middle of the day. The 
windows protected by the shade fins are narrow, thermally broken windows with insulated low-e glass, and keep 
the heat where it belongs- outside! 
 
 Instead of walls that go past the ceiling to keep people from crawling over the ceiling tiles into your office 
we used the ductwork and pipes to form impassable barriers. The mechanical room is a Swiss watch, half the 
ordinary size. Stair towers prevent the structure from twisting. A below grade retention wall serves as building 
foundation, drainage ditch shoring, and foundation for a site wall which screens the trash enclosure, provides a 
private seating area and creates a complete security perimeter without having an ugly barbed-wired fence directly 
against the building. 
 
 The building placement minimizes lost parking, maximizes views, provides a short connection to the 
courthouse, and the building itself becomes part of the security perimeter for the south parking. We shaped the 
building to minimize solar heat gain. We used glass interiors with sliding doors to maximize daylight, create a 
sense of connection to the outdoors, provide transparency and eliminate door swings; which allowed us to make 
the building narrower. On the west side the sun is at its most intense, but there are excellent views, and this is the 
side of the building that traffic will get the best up-close view of. This side received the highest density of dollars 
and brain power. There, a beautiful fully-glaze facade is protected by a self-shading, convection-cooled shade 
structure and heat sink which hangs three feet off the building allowing for glass cleaning, exceptional views to 
the northwest and a whopping 66% shade from western sun. It does all of this while concealing a few brightly 
colored panels which scatter beautiful colored light into and around the building at sunset and these panels reveal 
themselves to passersby as their viewing angle changes creating a moment of blossoming not unlike cactus 
flowers. 
 

The design of the Pinal County Attorney’s Office came from a strict demand for adaptation. Every aspect 
of its form and composition derived from natural forces. As such, it is like the saguaro. It is a natural desert 
dweller. It is not like any other building in Florence, but rather it is a part of the landscape. In time, we believe, it 
will come to feel as if it has somehow always been here. 

 
 
Project Data 

• Height:  5 Stories, 76’ tall 
• Floor plate:  56,000 Square feet 
• Composition: Metal Panel double insulated wall system with shade fins, Curtainwall Glazing 
• Construction Type:  1B 
• Structure: 2-Hour rated Steel frame, 2-Hour fire rated concrete on steel deck floors 
• Primary use:  Office (B) 
• Special features:  Fifth floor training room, Fifth floor patio, Optional bridge connection to courthouse 
• Code features: Fully ADA accessible, fire truck access on all sides, Heavy fire ratings 



CONCRETE MASONRY
TRENDSTONE BY TRENWYTH COLOR = MALIBU SAND

METAL PANEL WALL SYSTEM
COLOR = BRONZE II FOR ALL METAL PANELS

WINDOW FRAMES AND ENTRY CANOPIES
COLOR = DARK BRONZE

GLASS
VITRO INSULATED GLASS SOLAR COOL SOLAR BLUE

CONCRETE MASONRY ACCENTS
TRENDSTONE BY TRENWYTH COLOR = OPAL

PINAL COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE
MATERIAL BOARD



SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

MECHANICAL 

YARD

EAST JASON LOPEZ CIRCLE

P
IN

A
L

 P
A

R
K

W
A

Y

PRIVATE 

PLAZA

PROPOSED PINAL COUNTY 

ATTORNEY'S OFFICE BUILDING

56,000 SF

HEIGHT: 75'-10"

AS1.3

1

03.14

32.03

32.04

32.04

13.01

32.04

28' - 6" EXISTING PARKING
NO PARKING IN THIS AREA

50' - 8"

12' - 8"
7 NEW PARKING SPACES @ 9'-0" X 2 ROWS = 14 SPACES

63' - 0"

40
' -

 0
"

R = 10' - 0"

R
 =

 2
' -

 0
"

R = 10
' - 

0"

R = 2'  - 0"

32.05

03.13

5'
 - 

0"
13

' -
 7

"
32

' -
 0

"
9'

 - 
0"

8 
N

E
W

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 S
P

AC
E

S
 @

 9
'-0

"
72

' -
 0

"
8'

 - 
0"

24
' -

 0
"

R =
 32

' - 
6"

R
 = 6' - 6" R = 2' - 0"

R = 2' - 0"

18
' -

 0
"

6 
N

E
W

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 S
P

AC
E

S
 @

 9
'-0

"
54

' -
 0

"
17

' -
 0

"

R
 = 32' - 6"

R = 2' - 0"

R =
 6'

 - 6
"

R = 2' - 0"

04

5' - 0"

3' - 0"

2' - 0"
5' - 0" 20' - 4" 5' - 0" 29' - 0" 10' - 0" 5' - 0" 26' - 0"

6"

17
' -

 0
"

4 
N

E
W

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 S
P

AC
E

S
 @

 9
'-0

"
36

' -
 0

"
9'

 - 
0"

9'
 - 

0"
9'

 - 
0"

9'
 - 

0"
20

' -
 4

"
11

' -
 8

"

1'
 - 

6"

10
' -

 0
"

20' - 0" 20' - 0" 26' - 0" 20' - 0"

R = 2' - 0"

R = 2' - 0"

R =
 10

' - 
0"

R = 3' - 0"

03.13

32.05

32.06

32.04

32.02

03.13

10
' -

 0
"

5'
 - 

0"

32.02

32.03

02.17 02.18

02.17

02.21

05.31

EXISTING PINAL 

COUNTY 

COURTHOUSE 

BUILDING

185,000 SF

F
IR

E 
LA

N
E

26
' -

 0
"

7' - 0" 5' - 0" 8' - 0"
8' - 6"

16' - 6"

26' - 0"  FIRE LANE

10' - 0"

5' - 0"

7' - 6"

20' - 0"

16' - 0"
5' - 0"

3' - 4"
10' - 2"

26 ' - 0 "

30 ' - 6 "

17
' -

 1
0"

2'
 - 

2"

6'
-8

 1
/4

" (
+/

-)

18
' -

 0
"

13.01

02.19

04.08

7' - 5"
3' - 4"

26.05

26.09

26.09

32.04

LANE
20' - 0"  FIRE

LA
N

E
20

' -
 0

"  
FI

R
E

08.23

02.22

25 ' - 6 "

5'
 - 

0"
6'

 - 
5"

02.23

32.07

03.15

03.15

26.08

5' - 0"
12' - 0"

45 ' - 6 "

5'  - 0"
15 ' - 0 "

04

18' - 0" 4' - 6" 6' - 0" 6' - 0"

A

12
' -

 0
"

6'
 - 

0"

8'
 - 

0"
10

' -
 0

"
12

' -
 6

"
6'

 - 
0"

6'
 - 

0"

60.00°

9'
 - 

9"
6'

 - 
6"

8'
 - 

0"

02.21

03.15

07.19

07.19

05.32

32.03

32.04

02.21

03
02.21

20' - 10" 4' - 2"

03.15

07.19

07.19

8'
 - 

0"40' - 0"

34' - 6"

10.05

05.32

02.19

02.22

02.22

32.04

07.19

07.19

32.04

07.19

05.32

32.04

07.19

07.19

02.23

08.23

02.24

32.08

03.15

07.19

02.22

07.19

07.19

07.19

03.15

02.22

07.19

32.0907.19

26.10

07.19

07.19

07.19

07.19

07.19

05.32

05.32

05.32

07.19

07.19

07.19
07.19

02.20

03.13
07.19

07.19

07.19

07.19

07.19

07.19
07.19

07.19

02.13

5'
 - 

0"

04.03

7' - 0" 36' - 0"

07.19

07.19

07.19

02.25

02.25

02.25

02.25

21.01

04.03

21.02

MAIN 

ELEC. 
ROOM

FIRE ALARM 

ANNUNCIATOR PANEL
(FAAP) LOCATION

10.06

10.06

10.06

07.19

40
' -

 0
"

13
' -

 4
"

3'
 - 

0"

R
 =  50'  - 0 "

R
 = 20' - 0"

3'
 - 

0"

4' - 10"

3' - 10"8' - 8" 15' - 5"

19' - 4"

M3

M3

M3

03.13

32.02

07.19

03.15

M3

05.33

32.10

32.11

32.12

FIRE 
RISER. 
ROOM

02.25

8

6

6

7

7

ADA

ADA

R
 = 50' - 0"

R
 =

 5
0'

 - 
0"

SETBACK
50' - 0"

PROPERTY LINEMONUMENT 
LINE

RIGHT OF WAY
70' - 0"

DRAINAGE

DITCH

7' - 8"

MAIN 

ENTRANCE

STAFF 

ENTRANCE

EXISTING PARKING

E
X

IS
T
IN

G
 P

A
R

K
IN

G

E X I S T I N G        P A R K I N G

NEW PARKING

NEW PARKING

EXISTING PARKING

SITE ELECTRICAL SEE ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

S
E

T
BA

C
K

50
' -

 0
"

D.03

05.38

PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING FENCE 
TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING FENCE 
TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING FENCE 
TO REMAIN

• ZONING CODE: LI

• ZONING DESCRIPTION: LIGHT INDUSTRIAL

• FRONT SETBACK: 50 FEET
• REAR SETBACK: 25 FEET

• INTERIOR SETBACK: 25 FEET

• STREET SETBACK: 50 FEET

• SITE AREA: 4.79 ACRES
• APN: 200-46-005R

• OWNER NAME: PINAL COUNTY

• PARCEL ADDRESS: 971 N JASON LOPEZ C

• 
• NOTE: SEE ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS FOR SITE LIGHTING 

SHEET: ES1.1

SITE/ZONING INFORMATION

©
 D

L
R

 G
ro

u
p

LEGEND NOTES

Revisions

7
/2

3
/2

0
1

9
 9

:3
2
:1

5
 A

M

C
:\

R
e

v
it

\3
0

-1
9

1
0

1
-0

0
_

A
R

_
P

in
a

l_
C

o
_

A
tt

o
rn

e
y
s
_

2
0
1

8
_

fi
b

a
rr

a
.r

v
t

30-19101-00

07.22.19

P
IN

A
L

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 A
T

T
O

R
N

E
Y

'S
 O

F
F

IC
E

CONSTRUCTION
DOCUMENTS

ARCHITECTURAL
SITE PLAN

AS1.2

9
7
1
 E

A
S

T
 J

A
S

O
N

 L
O

P
E

Z
 C

IR
C

L
E

 -
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 "

F
"

F
L
O

R
E

N
C

E
, 
A

R
IZ

O
N

A
 8

5
1
3
2

NORTH

SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"

ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN

02.13 EXISTING BUILDING WALL.

02.17 EMERGENCY EXIT.

02.18 EMPLOYEE ENTRANCE.

02.19 DASHED LINE REPRESENTS ACCESSIBLE TRAVEL ROUTE
FROM PUBLIC WAY TO MAIN (PUBLIC) ENTRANCE.

02.20 DASHED LINE REPRESENTS ACCESSIBLE TRAVEL ROUTE
FROM PUBLIC WAY TO MAIN (NON-PUBLIC) ENTRANCE.

02.21 BUILDING GRID LINE. DIMENSION CONTROL POINT FOR SITE
ELEMENTS.

02.22 EXISTING CONCRETE SIDEWALK.

02.23 DASHED LINE REPRESENTS CANOPY ABOVE.

02.24 MAIN (PUBLIC) ENTRANCE,

02.25 DOTTED LINE AT CURB INDICATES LOCATIONS WHERE CURB
IS TO BE PAINTED RED WITH MARKINGS AS SPECIFIED BY
PINAL COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT OR STATE OF ARIZONA
FIRE MARSHAL.

03.13 CONCRETE CURB. REFER TO CIVIL DRAWINGS.

03.14 CONCRETE SIDEWALK.

03.15 TRANSITION LINE BETWEEN EXISTING CONCRETE AND NEW
CONCRETE.

04.03 REINFORCED MASONRY SCREEN WALL.

04.08 8" HIGH X 1'-4" WIDE DRAINAGE SCUPPER AT BASE OF WALL

05.31 STEEL FENCE WITH DECORATIVE GATE. REFER TO
LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS. NOTE: GATE TO HAVE EGRESS
HARDWARE.

05.32 METAL SCREEN / GUARDRAIL PANEL. REFER TO LANDSCAPE
DRAWINGS.

05.33 CONCRETE FILLED PIPE BOLLARD. TYP. OF 3

05.38 EXISTING FENCE TO REMAIN FROM THIS POINT SOUTH

07.19 EXPANSION JOINT.

08.23 AUTOMATIC DOOR OPERATOR SWITCH LOCATION.

10.05 GROUND-SET FLAGPOLE

10.06 FIRE DEPARTMENT KEY BOX LOCATION (KNOX BOX).

13.01 TENSILE MEMBRANE STRUCTURE. REFER TO LANDSCAPE
DRAWINGS.

21.01 FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION LOCATION.

21.02 FIRE HYDRANT LOCATION.

26.05 TRANSFORMER.

26.08 ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT. REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS.

26.09 ELECTRIC CAR CHARGING STATION.

26.10 LIGHT BOLLARD. TYPICAL. REFER TO ELECTRICAL
DRAWINGS.

32.02 LANDSCAPE AREA.

32.03 SEATING / BENCHES. REFER TO LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS.

32.04 ELEVATED PLANTER. REFER TO LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS.

32.05 NEW LANDSCAPE PLANTER. REFER TO CIVIL AND
LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS.

32.06 TRAFFIC STRIPING. MATCH EXISTING COLOR. TYPICAL.

32.07 GRASS PAVER SYSTEM. REFER TO LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS.

32.08 CONCRETE HEADER. REFER TO LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS.

32.09 BOLLARD. TYPICAL OF 2. REFER TO LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS.

32.10 TRASH ENCLOSURE. REFER TO LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS.

32.11 MOUNTABLE CURB. REFER TO LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS.

32.12 EXISTING MOUNTABLE CURB. REFER TO LANDSCAPE
DRAWINGS.

D.03 DEMOLISH FENCE FROM THIS POINT NORTHWARD



LEVEL 01
100' - 0"

LEVEL 02
114' - 6"

LEVEL 05
158' - 0"

LEVEL 03
129' - 0"

LEVEL 04
143' - 6"

02030405 0107 06

ROOF
172' - 6"

2

A6.1

2

A6.1

51

A7.1

51

A7.1

51

A7.2

51

A7.2

54

A7.1

54

A7.1

52

A7.1

52

A7.1

3

A6.1

3

A6.1

ELEVATOR PIT
95' - 0"

08.08

08.07

05.17

08.08

08.08

05.19

04.02

08.12

08.25

EXISTING BUILDING

23.01BEYOND

TYP.

05.21

9'
 -

 6
"

8'
 -

 0
"W11W11W11W11W11

W10W10W10W10 W10

23

A8.5

24

A4.2

44

A4.2

25

A10.5

34

A10.5

44

A10.5

36

A9.5

36

A9.4

26

A9.4

46

A9.4

23

A10.5

43

A10.5

21

A10.5

26

A9.5

W11 W11

W10 W10W10

15

A9.4

02.16

02.09

02.16

04.09

04.09 04.02
08.24

08.2508.2508.2502.15

SF1

CW1

04.11

04.10 04.10 10.06
04.11

LEVEL 01
100' - 0"

LEVEL 02
114' - 6"

LEVEL 05
158' - 0"

LEVEL 03
129' - 0"

LEVEL 04
143' - 6"

BC

1

A6.1

1

A6.1

ROOF
172' - 6"

53

A7.1

53

A7.1

A.7

W7 W7

W5W5

W5

W1W1

W5

W14

NOTE:

SHADE FINS NOT 
SHOWN FOR CLARITY.

08.08

08.08

08.12

08.07

TYP.

05.21

04.02

08.15

08.15

5017
03.10

TYP.
BEYOND A8.5

23

OPP.

A

10.06

05.31

04.1004.11

04.10

0"
11 3/4"

11 3/4"

04.11

CMU1 CMU GROUND FACE BLOCK (MALIBU SAND)
CMU2 CMU GROUND FACE BLOCK (OPAL)
MX1 MATRIX MX 1-0 METAL PANEL

COLOR TO MATCH CENTRIA 9981 BRONZE II
MX2 MATRIX MX 2-0 METAL PANEL

COLOR TO MATCH CENTRIA 9981 BRONZE II
MX6 MATRIX MX 6-0 METAL PANEL

COLOR TO MATCH CENTRIA 9981 BRONZE II
RMX1 REVERSE-SIDE PAINTED MATRIX MX 1-0 METAL PANEL

COLOR TO MATCH CENTRIA 9981 BRONZE II
RMX2 REVERSE-SIDE PAINTED MATRIX MX 2-0 METAL PANEL

COLOR TO MATCH CENTRIA 9981 BRONZE II

RMX6 REVERSE-SIDE PAINTED MATRIX MX 6-0 METAL PANEL
COLOR TO MATCH CENTRIA 9981 BRONZE II

PMX1 PERFORATED MATRIX MX 1-0 METAL PANEL
COLOR TO MATCH CENTRIA 9981 BRONZE II

PMX2 PERFORATED MATRIX MX 2-0 METAL PANEL
COLOR TO MATCH CENTRIA 9981 BRONZE II

PMX6 PERFORATED MATRIX MX 6-0 METAL PANEL
COLOR TO MATCH CENTRIA 9981 BRONZE II

SSP STANDING SEAM PANEL. 
COLOR TO MATCH ATAS 01 CLASSIC BRONZE

PT-20 PAINT. COLOR TO MATCH ATAS 01 CLASSIC BRONZE

©
 D

L
R

 G
ro

u
p

LEGEND NOTES

Revisions

7
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
 1

0
:0

5
:2

1
 A

M

C
:\

R
e

vi
t\

3
0
-1

9
1

0
1
-0

0
_

A
R

_
P

in
a

l_
C

o
_
A

tt
o

rn
e

y
s
_
2

0
1

8
_

fib
a

rr
a

.r
v
t

30-19101-00

07.22.19

P
IN

A
L
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 A

T
T

O
R

N
E

Y
'S

 O
F

F
IC

E

CONSTRUCTION
DOCUMENTS

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

A5.1

9
7
1
 E

A
S

T
 J

A
S

O
N

 L
O

P
E

Z
 C

IR
C

L
E

 -
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 "

F
"

F
L
O

R
E

N
C

E
, 
A

R
IZ

O
N

A
 8

5
1
3
2

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"A5.1

1 NORTH ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"A5.1

2 EAST ELEVATION
NO SCALEA5.1

3 NORTHEAST CORNER PERSPECTIVE

MATERIALS LEGEND

02.09 FINISH GRADE. SLOPE AWAY FROM STRUCTURE. REFER TO
CIVIL DRAWINGS.

02.15 PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE AT 5TH FLOOR.

02.16 DASHED LINE REPRESENTS PLANTER WALLS NOT SHOWN
FOR CLARITY. REFER TO LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS.

03.10 EXPOSED CONCRETE OVER METAL DECK. PROVIDE MEDIUM
BROOM FINISH AND CONCRETE SEALER.

04.02 MASONRY VENEER SYSTEM. (CMU1)

04.09 MASONRY VENEER SYSTEM. (CMU2)

04.10 FULL CONCRETE MASONRY VENEER UNIT

04.11 PARTIAL CONCRETE MASONRY VENEER UNIT

05.17 STEEL SUPPORT FOR EXTERIOR SHADE SCREEN
ASSEMBLY. PAINT PT-20

05.19 STEEL STRUCTURE FOR ENTRANCE CANOPY. PAINT PT-20

05.21 BENT PLATE TRANSITION (C-CHANNEL SHAPE) PAINT PT-20

05.31 STEEL FENCE WITH DECORATIVE GATE. REFER TO
LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS. NOTE: GATE TO HAVE EGRESS
HARDWARE.

08.07 ALUMINUM CURTAIN WALL SYSTEM WITH INSULATED
GLASS.

08.08 INSULATED SPANDREL GLASS.

08.12 THERMALLY BROKEN ALUMINUM FRAME WINDOW SYSTEM
WITH 1" INSULATED GLASS, CENTER GLAZED.

08.15 WALL LOUVER.

08.24 ALUMINUM FRAME STORE FRONT SYSTEM

08.25 ALUMINUM EXTERIOR MULLION EXTRUSION. COLOR TO
MATCH ATAS 01 CLASSIC BRONZE

10.06 FIRE DEPARTMENT KEY BOX LOCATION (KNOX BOX).

23.01 MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT.



LEVEL 01
100' - 0"

LEVEL 02
114' - 6"

LEVEL 05
158' - 0"

LEVEL 03
129' - 0"

LEVEL 04
143' - 6"

02 03 04 0501 0706

ROOF
172' - 6"

2

A6.1

2

A6.1

51

A7.1

51

A7.1

51

A7.2

51

A7.2

54

A7.1

54

A7.1

52

A7.1

52

A7.1

3

A6.1

3

A6.1

1301 W10 1018C W10 W10 W10 W10 W10 W10 W10 W10 1021 1210

W2W1W1W1W2W1W1W1W2

W6 W5 W5 W6 W5 W5 W5 W5 W5

W6W5W5W6W5W5W6W5W5W5

W7W7W8W8W7W8W7
W7W8

W5W6W6W5W6W6W5W5

W7 W7W7W8W7

W5 W6 W5

W5 W6 W5 W5 W6 W5 W5 W6 W5 W6 W6

W3W4W4W3W3

W2W1W1W1W2W1

23.01

08.08

BEYOND

BEYOND

08.12

05.21

04.02

26.06

04.0308.01 TYP.08.12 TYP.

08.12

05.20

05.19

05.17

05.17

08.08

08.08

08.07

AS1.3

23

04.03

A7.2

33

02.15W8

24

A4.2
44

A4.2

34

A10.5

44

A10.5

36

A9.5

36

A9.4

26

A9.4

46

A9.4

23

A10.5

43

A10.5

W1

21

A10.5

26

A9.5

15

A9.4

10.06

NOTE: SHADE FINS NOT SHOWN FOR CLARITY

08.24

SF1

SF2

04.10 04.10 04.11

LEVEL 01
100' - 0"

LEVEL 02
114' - 6"

LEVEL 05
158' - 0"

LEVEL 03
129' - 0"

LEVEL 04
143' - 6"

B C

1

A6.1

1

A6.1

ROOF
172' - 6"

52

A7.2

52

A7.2

A.7

W10 W10

04.06 04.04 04.04

8'
 -

 0
"

08.08

07.06

08.07

05.17

05.17

07.06

07.06

05.1905.19

05.21

08.11

BEYOND

04.03

04.05

45

A4.2

B.3

08.21

W10

W10

36

A9.5

26

A9.5

A

3'
 -

 3
"

04.09

NOTE: SHADE FINS NOT SHWON FOR CLARITY

CW2

04.10 04.11

45

A9.5

CMU1 CMU GROUND FACE BLOCK (MALIBU SAND)
CMU2 CMU GROUND FACE BLOCK (OPAL)
MX1 MATRIX MX 1-0 METAL PANEL

COLOR TO MATCH CENTRIA 9981 BRONZE II
MX2 MATRIX MX 2-0 METAL PANEL

COLOR TO MATCH CENTRIA 9981 BRONZE II
MX6 MATRIX MX 6-0 METAL PANEL

COLOR TO MATCH CENTRIA 9981 BRONZE II
RMX1 REVERSE-SIDE PAINTED MATRIX MX 1-0 METAL PANEL

COLOR TO MATCH CENTRIA 9981 BRONZE II
RMX2 REVERSE-SIDE PAINTED MATRIX MX 2-0 METAL PANEL

COLOR TO MATCH CENTRIA 9981 BRONZE II

RMX6 REVERSE-SIDE PAINTED MATRIX MX 6-0 METAL PANEL
COLOR TO MATCH CENTRIA 9981 BRONZE II

PMX1 PERFORATED MATRIX MX 1-0 METAL PANEL
COLOR TO MATCH CENTRIA 9981 BRONZE II

PMX2 PERFORATED MATRIX MX 2-0 METAL PANEL
COLOR TO MATCH CENTRIA 9981 BRONZE II

PMX6 PERFORATED MATRIX MX 6-0 METAL PANEL
COLOR TO MATCH CENTRIA 9981 BRONZE II

SSP STANDING SEAM PANEL. 
COLOR TO MATCH ATAS 01 CLASSIC BRONZE

PT-20 PAINT. COLOR TO MATCH ATAS 01 CLASSIC BRONZE

©
 D

L
R

 G
ro

u
p

LEGEND NOTES

Revisions

7
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
 3

:1
7

:2
2
 P

M

C
:\

R
e

vi
t\

3
0
-1

9
1

0
1
-0

0
_

A
R

_
P

in
a

l_
C

o
_
A

tt
o

rn
e

y
s
_
2

0
1

8
_

fib
a

rr
a

.r
v
t

30-19101-00

07.22.19

P
IN

A
L
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 A

T
T

O
R

N
E

Y
'S

 O
F

F
IC

E

CONSTRUCTION
DOCUMENTS

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

A5.2

9
7
1
 E

A
S

T
 J

A
S

O
N

 L
O

P
E

Z
 C

IR
C

L
E

 -
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 "

F
"

F
L
O

R
E

N
C

E
, 
A

R
IZ

O
N

A
 8

5
1
3
2

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"A5.2

1 SOUTH ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"A5.2

2 WEST ELEVATION
NO SCALEA5.2

3 SOUTHWEST CORNER PERSPECTIVE

LEGEND

02.15 PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE AT 5TH FLOOR.

04.02 MASONRY VENEER SYSTEM. (CMU1)

04.03 REINFORCED MASONRY SCREEN WALL.

04.04 MASONRY CONTROL JOINT.

04.05 CONCRETE MASONRY UNIT.

04.06 MASONRY EXPANSION JOINT.

04.09 MASONRY VENEER SYSTEM. (CMU2)

04.10 FULL CONCRETE MASONRY VENEER UNIT

04.11 PARTIAL CONCRETE MASONRY VENEER UNIT

05.17 STEEL SUPPORT FOR EXTERIOR SHADE SCREEN
ASSEMBLY. PAINT PT-20

05.19 STEEL STRUCTURE FOR ENTRANCE CANOPY. PAINT PT-20

05.20 STEEL STRUCTURE FOR PATIO CANOPY. PAINT PT-20

05.21 BENT PLATE TRANSITION (C-CHANNEL SHAPE) PAINT PT-20

07.06 METAL WALL PANEL SYSTEM.

08.01 DOOR PER SCHEDULE.

08.07 ALUMINUM CURTAIN WALL SYSTEM WITH INSULATED
GLASS.

08.08 INSULATED SPANDREL GLASS.

08.11 VERTICAL ALUMINUM MULLION.

08.12 THERMALLY BROKEN ALUMINUM FRAME WINDOW SYSTEM
WITH 1" INSULATED GLASS, CENTER GLAZED.

08.21 METAL INFILL PANEL TO MATCH WINDOW SYSTEM, TYP. AT
ALL BEAM PENETRATIONS

08.24 ALUMINUM FRAME STORE FRONT SYSTEM

10.06 FIRE DEPARTMENT KEY BOX LOCATION (KNOX BOX).

23.01 MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT.

26.06 DASHED LINE REPRESENTS LOCATION OF ELECTRICAL
EQUIPMENT. REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS.



APN 200-49-029A, 047A, 048, 049  
PZ-19-33 

September 19, 2019 
1 

 

Planning and Zoning Commission 
Staff Report 

September 19, 2019 
Agenda Item 6B 

 
 

Project Name: Design Review for Pinal County Development Services 
Building 
APNs  200-49-029A, 200-49-047A, 200-49-048, 200-49-049 
 
PZ-19-33 
 

Prepared By:  Larry C. Harmer 
    Community Development Director 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
REQUEST: 
 
A Design Review application for the proposed Pinal County Development Services  
Building located at 85 North Florence Street. 
 

 
 



APN 200-49-029A, 047A, 048, 049  
PZ-19-33 

September 19, 2019 
2 

 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS: 
 
The new structure will add to the Pinal County Core Complex located in “Old Town” 
Florence. The proposed building will be located east of the current Development Services 
(Building F) offices across North Florence Street noted on the attached aerial in red.  This 
will be one of two new buildings that County is developing to replace and/or supplement 
current, older facilities.  A portion of existing Building F will be removed and the remaining 
structure (outlined in red west of Florence Street) will be enhanced with finishes that are 
intended to compliment the existing complex and the new building. 
 
This newest addition to the County’s Main Complex depicts a modernization of the overall 
theme and will anchor the east side of the total complex.  The proposed building and 
building remodel are both outside of the Town of Florence Historic District and, therefore, 
not subject to the historic design and development standards.  The new Development 
Services Building will include approximately 50,000 square feet of office and meeting room 
area divided between two floors with the primary entrance located at the south end of the 
building.  Additional parking is proposed north and south of the new building and storm 
water retention will be located north of the new parking. 
 
This proposal includes the abandonment of North Florence Street from Butte to 11th 
Street.  The abandoned street will become part of the Pinal County Complex and will 
become a connecting pedestrian plaza and fire lane access.   The plaza will contain 
landscape pockets with pedestrian seating and the fire lane will be improved to 
accommodate the Town’s largest fire safety vehicle.  Ultimately, most of existing Building 
F will be demolished and additional parking will be added to the complex.   
 
In general, the new building will be faced with modern materials, but with a color palette 
that compliments the existing building in the County Complex.  At the same time, the new 
building is designed with energy efficiency in mind.  Mechanical equipment will be 
screened from street view and the windows will be buffered from direct sun light.  A 
detailed description of the proposed building and pedestrian plaza is contained in 
the attached Project Description provided by the applicant. 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
Under Arizona Revised Statutes, Title 9, Section 462.04 and the Town of Florence 
Development Code; a public hearing and a community meeting are not required for 
Design Review. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff finds that the request is in compliance with applicable Town codes and is in keeping 
with the character established for this area.  The Planning and Zoning Commission may 
move to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the Design Review application for PZ-



APN 200-49-029A, 047A, 048, 049  
PZ-19-33 

September 19, 2019 
3 

 

19-33.  Should the Commission move to approve this application, staff suggests the 
following Conditions: 
 

1. The Design Review approval shall expire in one year from the date of approval if 
a building permit is not issued for the subject construction. 

 
2. The Project shall comply with all applicable Town codes, including, but not limited 

to, building, fire and engineering codes. 
 

3. Any exterior lighting shall be in compliance with applicable light control restrictions. 
 

4. All utility boxes, back flow preventers and similar equipment shall be painted to 
match the surrounding buildings. 
 

5. Final grading and drainage plans are subject to the review and approval of the 
Town Engineer and such approvals might result in minor modifications to the 
proposed site plan. 
 

6. Compliance with this Design Review approval shall be required prior to issuance 
of a Final Certificate of Occupancy. 
 

7. Any additional conditions deemed necessary by the Planning Commission 



 

 

 

ARCHITECTURAL NARRATIVE 

New Pinal County Development Services Center 
 
Site Plan 
After analyzing the pros and cons of two potential building sites, Pinal County decided to locate the 
new two-story Development Services Center on the property east of existing Building F, between 
Florence and North Park Streets. The majority of existing Building F will be demolished upon 
completion of the new facility and its site will be converted into a parking lot to serve the new 
building.  A portion of Building F will be maintained and fully renovated to provide a new Emergency 
Operations Center.  
 
Florence Street, between 11th and 13th, Streets will be closed to normal vehicular traffic. The resultant 
pedestrian plaza will strengthen the new building’s relationship to the other nearby County facilities, 
start to reinforce a desired “campus feel”, improve safety, and allow the new building to be sited 
farther away from the site’s east edge to create a more comfortable buffer to the adjacent 
neighborhood.   
 
Floor Plan 
The new building layout is based on a module that accommodates the use of today’s systems 
furniture.  With offices along the east and west sides and large open work areas in between, the new 
plan offers flexibility and the ability to quickly adapt to change over time – staff and whole 
departments can easily be shifted as needed. Additionally, abundant natural light and views are 
available to all work spaces in the building through windows and light monitors.  The plan proposes a 
modest two-story entry lobby and incorporates shared spaces, such as conference rooms and training 
spaces, conveniently to both the public and staff.  Rest rooms and service areas form a stacked core 
for ease of construction and plumbing consolidation.  
 
Building Exterior 
The building is a simple masonry structure with steel interior columns. Masonry is exposed along the 
lower level of the building, creating a very durable 9’ base and pedestrian scale, while a rain screen or 
“skin” of perforated metal (or another pre-finished material) is located above to protect its long east 
and west facing facades from direct solar exposure.  Openings in the screen correspond to the 
“punched” window openings behind, which have been placed as needed to provide natural light and 
views to the private office areas and support spaces.  To announce the main building entry, the 
screen is “pulled up” to reveal brightly colored, insulated storefront panels and back-lit metal 
lettering. Z-shaped roof and overhang forms are repeated at key areas, such as the entry, the light 
monitors and a shared conference room, to articulate the building mass and express interior 
functions on the exterior.  Building materials, finishes and colors will be selected in response to the 
surrounding context with the intention of complimenting the environment.   
 
Materials & Systems 
The new building efficiently combines structural masonry and steel frame construction. The exterior 
“skin” consists of prefinished metal (or another rain screen system), exposed masonry in a stack-bond 
pattern, and high-performance glazing and insulated metal panels in an aluminum storefront system.  
The roof consists of a TPO system and the majority is surrounded by parapet, which helps to conceal 

running bond



 

 

the roof-mounted mechanical units.  Interior walls extend to the roof and floor structure and include 
acoustic insulation to minimize noise transference. Doors are solid core with wood veneer set in 
aluminum frames with full-height sidelights. Millwork consists of solid surface countertops and plastic 
laminate on vertical surfaces, like base and upper cabinet doors. Special areas, such as the public 
service counter or department reception areas, may incorporate wood veneer on the vertical 
surfaces.  Floors consist primarily of ground and polished concrete on the main lower level, applied 
“green” sheet flooring on the second level, and carpet tile throughout. Ceilings will incorporate 
“hard” soffits with acoustical lay-in tile.  Lighting will include LED fixtures with state-of-the-art 
controls.  
 
Benefits of a New Development Services Center 
As stated in the feasibility report completed in 2017, a new building designed for the specific needs of 
Pinal County Public Services offers advantages over a renovated Building F.  These include: 
 

• more effective space usage 

• flexibility – open office can be reconfigured easily as needs change in the future 

• extremely efficient to better serve the public and utilize staff time 

• new public image, source of community and County pride, staff recruitment / retention 

• expandability – can be designed to accommodate future growth 

• parking availability – after construction, Building F to be demolished and its site used for parking 

• no phasing or multiple staff moves required 

• high-performance HVAC and building envelope systems will save the County in utility costs 
immediately and over time 

• green, easy to maintain, and highly durable finishes will save in maintenance costs 

 
Emergency Operations Center (EOC) Floor Plan 
Also, part of the project is the renovation of a portion of existing Building F for use as a new 
Emergency Operations Center (EOC) and Hearing Room.  The layout creates a shared public lobby 
with access to public restrooms.  The concept locates the largest spaces of each user group, the 
Hearing Room and the EOC Command Center, next to each other with an operable partition in 
between. This allows for the accommodation of audience overflow.  Internally, Pinal County is 
evaluating whether to make this a permanent wall.  On the EOC side, support spaces surround and 
open into the Command Center.  On the Hearing Room side, supervisors have access to a separate 
and secure rest room and conference space that also serves as a break room.  A dais and associated 
millwork are built into the space.   
 
 



Materials &

COLORS
PINAL COUNTY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES CENTER

June 25, 2019

PAINT (DUNN EDWARDS)
P-1 FIELD SWISS COFFEE DEW341
P-2 ACCENT GRACEFUL GREEN DE6284
P-3 ACCENT SILVER SKATE DE5801
P-4 ACCENT SMOKEY MOUNTAIN DE6388
P-5 EXTERIOR HM FALLEN ROCK DE6389

P-1

P-2

P-3

P-4

P-5MILLWORK 
WD-1  DOORS & VERT SURFACES 
 WHITE BIRCH CLEAR VENEER PLYWOOD
SS-1 SOLID SURFACE STORM GRANITE 

 HI-MACS G602

WD-1

SS-1

REST ROOM TILE 
FT-1  FLOOR TILE MED GRAY UNPOLISHED   
NEOSPECK AMERICAN OLEAN
WT-1  WALL TILE WHITE K101 DALTILE
WT-2  WALL TILE WATERFALL 0169 DALTILE
WT-3  WALL TILE SPA 0148 DALTILE

FT-1

RESILIENT LVT (MANNINGTON COMMERCIAL) 
LVT-1 FIELD STRIDE / CHINCHILLA C135

LVT-2 FIELD STRIDE / COTTONTAIL C138

LVT-3 ACCENT STRIDE / ISLAND BLUE C129

LVT-4 ACCENT STRIDE / GRASSY MEADOW C125

 

LVT-1 LVT-2

LVT-3

RUBBER WALL BASE
RB-1  ROPPE SLATE 175 
 

RB-1

ACOUSTIC PANELS 
(GUILFORD OF MAINE) 
AP-1 ANCHORAGE WOLF 2027  
AP-2 ANCHORAGE EUCALYPTUS 2047

AP-1

AP-2

DOOR & WINDOW FRAME
DWF-1 NATURAL ALUMINUM   

EXTERIOR METAL PANELS 
(RMP ROLLFAB) 
MP-1 MEDIUM BRONZE   
MP-2 SILVER METALLIC
MP-3 PRE WEATHERED GALVALUME 

MP-1

MP-2
MP-3

CMU (TRENDSTONE)
CMU-1 HUNTINGTON GRAY   

CMU-1

POLISHED CONCRETE FLOORS
CONC-1 NATURAL CONCRETE LIGHT GRIND 

CONC-1
CARPET INTERFACE AERIAL FLYING COLORS 
CPT-1 GRANITE / AZURE AE315 105816 
CPT-2  AZURE A317 105829  
CPT-3  GRASS A317 105821

LVT-4

TOILET PARTITIONS
TP-1  HDP PE-28 GREY MATRIX   
NEOSPECK AMERICAN OLEAN

DWF-1 TP-1

WT-1

WT-2

WT-3

ACOUSTIC CEILING TILE

ACT-1 DUNE ARMSTRONG

COLORED GLASS FILM
CGF-1 GREEN CGF-2 BLUE (ACTUAL COLORS TBD) 

CGF-1

CGF-1

CPT-1

CPT-3

CPT-2



G

IRR

IRR

E E

E

E

E

V

W

W

W

W

W

B

G

G

PR
EL
IM
IN
AR
Y

JOB NO:
DATE:
REVISIONS

DRAWN BY:

CO
NS

UL
TA

NT
S

26
1 

No
rth

 C
ou

rt 
Av

en
ue

Tu
cs

on
, A

riz
on

a 
85

70
1

52
0.

79
5.

27
05

   
Fa

x 5
20

.7
95

.6
17

1
ww

w.
bw

sa
rc

hs
.c

om

B
U

R
N

S
 W

A
LD

-H
O

P.
IN

S
 S

H
A

M
B

A
C

H
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TS

95% CD SUBMITTAL

08-16-2019
1712.000

Pi
na

l C
ou

nt
y

Ne
w

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s
Bu

ild
in

g

CI
VI

L
Pe

rry
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g
50

1 
W

. W
et

m
or

e 
Rd

.
Tu

cs
on

, A
Z 

85
70

4
Ph

on
e:

 5
20

.6
20

.9
87

0

LA
ND

SC
AP

E
M

cG
an

n 
&

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s

68
14

 N
. O

ra
cl

e 
Rd

., 
Su

ite
21

0
Tu

cs
on

, A
Z 

85
70

5
Ph

on
e:

 5
20

.2
97

.9
54

0

ST
RU

CT
UR

AL
Tu

rn
er

 S
tru

ct
ur

al
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g
30

26
 N

. C
ou

nt
ry

 C
lu

b 
Rd

.
Tu

cs
on

, A
Z 

85
71

6
Ph

on
e:

 5
20

.3
23

.3
42

2

M
EC

HA
NI

CA
L

Ad
am

s 
&

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s

64
22

 E
. S

pe
ed

wa
y 

Bl
vd

,
Su

ite
 1

30
Tu

cs
on

, A
Z 

85
71

0
Ph

on
e:

 5
20

.3
23

.3
85

8

EL
EC

TR
IC

AL
M

3 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g
20

51
 W

. S
un

se
t R

d,
 S

ui
te

10
1

Tu
cs

on
, A

Z 
85

70
4

Ph
on

e:
 5

20
.2

93
.1

48
8

IN
TE

RI
OR

S
In

te
gr

at
ed

 In
te

rio
rs

, L
TD

74
18

 N
. C

am
in

o 
Si

n 
Va

ca
s

Tu
cs

on
, A

Z 
85

71
8

Ph
on

e:
52

0.
32

5.
53

67

CO
ST

 C
ON

SU
LT

IN
G

Co
m

pu
su

lt,
 In

c.
59

27
 E

as
t P

im
a 

St
re

et
Tu

cs
on

, A
Z 

85
71

2
Ph

on
e:

52
0.

88
2.

40
44

XX
XX

XX
XX

, F
lo

re
nc

e 
AZ

D.B.

A
R
C
H
IT
EC

TS

3/
20

/2
01

9 
2:

19
:4

9 
PM

.

C8

N

Feet
0 20 40

GRADING AND DRAINAGE
PLAN - PHASE 2

PA
R

K
 S

TR
EE

T

13TH STREET

11TH STREET

FL
O

R
EN

C
E 

ST
R

EE
T

FL
O

R
EN

C
E 

ST
R

EE
T

PA
R

K
 S

TR
EE

T

12TH STREET

PROPOSED
REMODELED
EOC CENTER

EXISTING AND
PROPOSED
FF = 95.68 PROPOSED

DEVELOPMENT
SERVICES
BUILDING

EX FF = 98.10

EXISTING
COURTHOUSE/ASSESSORS

BUILDING
EX FF = 97.24 TO 97.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
91

AutoCAD SHX Text
92

AutoCAD SHX Text
93

AutoCAD SHX Text
93

AutoCAD SHX Text
94

AutoCAD SHX Text
1495

AutoCAD SHX Text
95

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
98

AutoCAD SHX Text
99

AutoCAD SHX Text
93

AutoCAD SHX Text
94

AutoCAD SHX Text
95

AutoCAD SHX Text
1496

AutoCAD SHX Text
96

AutoCAD SHX Text
96

AutoCAD SHX Text
95

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' ELECTRIC EASEMENT PER DKT. 976, PG. 951

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' ELECTRIC EASEMENT PER DKT. 1291, PG. 695

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' ELECTRIC EASEMENT PER DKT. 1639, PG. 434

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' ELECTRIC EASEMENT PER DKT. 1768, PG. 89

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' UTILITY EASEMENT PER FEE No. 1998-003922

AutoCAD SHX Text
94

AutoCAD SHX Text
98

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
96

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
98

AutoCAD SHX Text
96

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
95

AutoCAD SHX Text
94

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
91.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.26EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.80TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.80TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.80TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.80TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.3EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.4EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.50TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.8EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.9EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
91.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.5EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.9EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.4EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.6EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.10TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.50TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.00TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.1EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.3EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.6EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.1EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.3EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.0EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.9EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
95

AutoCAD SHX Text
95

AutoCAD SHX Text
94

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.45EX

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.00TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.50TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.50TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.40TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.80TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
91.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.4EX

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.45EX

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.4EX

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.5EX

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.7EX

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.6EX

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.7EX

AutoCAD SHX Text
91.7EX

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.0EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.0EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.3EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.08EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEET EXISTING GRADES AT SAW-CUT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEET EXISTING GRADES AT SAW-CUT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEET EXISTING GRADES AT SAW-CUT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEET EXISTING GRADES AT SAW-CUT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.36EXTW

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.70EXBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.53EXSW

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.06EXSW

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.58EXSW

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.60EXSW

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.53EXSW

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.43EXP

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.29EXSW

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.16EXSW

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.82EXP

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.05EXP

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.92EXP

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.79EXP

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.14EXINV

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.8EX

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENNETH D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
34010

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
d

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
s

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
t

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
i

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
i

AutoCAD SHX Text
s

AutoCAD SHX Text
t

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
r

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
d

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
r

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
s

AutoCAD SHX Text
s

AutoCAD SHX Text
i

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
l

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
i

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
r

AutoCAD SHX Text
(

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
i

AutoCAD SHX Text
v

AutoCAD SHX Text
i

AutoCAD SHX Text
l

AutoCAD SHX Text
)

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
Z

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR 12" WATER MAIN EXTENSION EASTERLY TO WARNER STREET  SEE SEPARATE WATER MAIN  IMPROVEMENT PLANS



G

IRR

E

E

E

E

E

V

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

B

B

GG

G

S

S

S

S

Issue Date 08/16/2019

95% CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

JOB NO:
DATE:
REVISIONS

DRAWN BY:

CO
NS

UL
TA

NT
S

26
1 

No
rth

 C
ou

rt 
Av

en
ue

Tu
cs

on
, A

riz
on

a 
85

70
1

52
0.

79
5.

27
05

   
Fa

x 5
20

.7
95

.6
17

1
ww

w.
bw

sa
rc

hs
.c

om

B
U

R
N

S
 W

A
L
D

�H
O

P
.

IN
S

 S
H

A
M

B
A

C
H

A
R

C
H

IT
E
C

T
S

PREL
IM

IN
AR

Y -
 N

OT F
OR C

ONST
RUCTIO

N

FO
R R

EV
IEW

 PURPOSE
S O

NLY

A
R
C
H
IT
EC

TS

1712.000

Pi
na

l C
ou

nt
y

Ne
w

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s
Bu

ild
in

g

CI
VI

L
Pe

rry
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g
50

5 
W

. W
et

m
or

e 
Rd

.
Tu

cs
on

, A
Z 

85
70

4
Ph

on
e:

 5
20

.6
20

.9
87

0

LA
ND

SC
AP

E
M

cG
an

n 
&

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s

68
14

 N
. O

ra
cl

e 
Rd

., 
Su

ite
21

0
Tu

cs
on

, A
Z 

85
70

5
Ph

on
e:

 5
20

.2
97

.9
54

0

ST
RU

CT
UR

AL
Tu

rn
er

 S
tru

ct
ur

al
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g
30

26
 N

. C
ou

nt
ry

 C
lu

b 
Rd

.
Tu

cs
on

, A
Z 

85
71

6
Ph

on
e:

 5
20

.3
23

.3
42

2

M
EC

HA
NI

CA
L

Ad
am

s 
&

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s

64
22

 E
. S

pe
ed

wa
y 

Bl
vd

,
Su

ite
 1

30
Tu

cs
on

, A
Z 

85
71

0
Ph

on
e:

 5
20

.3
23

.3
85

8

EL
EC

TR
IC

AL
M

3 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g
20

51
 W

. S
un

se
t R

d,
 S

ui
te

10
1

Tu
cs

on
, A

Z 
85

70
4

Ph
on

e:
 5

20
.2

93
.1

48
8

IN
TE

RI
OR

S
In

te
gr

at
ed

 In
te

rio
rs

, L
TD

74
18

 N
. C

am
in

o 
Si

n 
Va

ca
s

Tu
cs

on
, A

Z 
85

71
8

Ph
on

e:
52

0.
32

5.
53

67

CO
ST

 C
ON

SU
LT

IN
G

Co
m

pu
su

lt,
 In

c.
59

27
 E

as
t P

im
a 

St
re

et
Tu

cs
on

, A
Z 

85
71

2
Ph

on
e:

52
0.

88
2.

40
44

En
te

r A
dd

re
ss

 H
er

e

MV

L1.0

LANDSCAPE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
w

AutoCAD SHX Text
w

AutoCAD SHX Text
w

AutoCAD SHX Text
w

AutoCAD SHX Text
w

AutoCAD SHX Text
w

AutoCAD SHX Text
w

AutoCAD SHX Text
w

AutoCAD SHX Text
w

AutoCAD SHX Text
w

AutoCAD SHX Text
w

AutoCAD SHX Text
w

AutoCAD SHX Text
w

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
BF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
BF

AutoCAD SHX Text
BF

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
BF

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL EDGING, SEE DETAIL SHEET L2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL EDGING, SEE DETAIL SHEET L2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAISED CIP CONCRETE PLANTER, SEE DETAIL SHEET H2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE FURNISHINGS SEE SCHEDULE SHEET H1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASIN, SEE CIVIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL EDGING, SEE DETAIL SHEET L2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE FURNISHINGS SEE SCHEDULE SHEET H1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TREE TO REMAIN IN PLACE, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE FURNISHINGS, SEE SHEET H1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
COURTYARD PLANTER, SEE DETAIL SHEET H2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAISED CIP CONCRETE PLANTER, SEE DETAIL SHEET H.2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT POLE, TYP. SEE ELECTRICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE SEATWALL, TYP, SEE SHEET H1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED DECOMPOSED GRANITE PATH, SEE DETAIL SHEET L2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIP RAP, SEE CIVIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE SEATWALL, TYP, SEE SHEET H1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE FURNISHINGS SEE SCHEDULE SHEET H1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
COURTYARD PLANTER, SEE DETAIL SHEET H2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PINAL COUNTY BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW DS BUILDING PHASE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW EOC BUILDING PHASE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
13TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
N PARK STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLORENCE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 1 LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 2 LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
11TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 1 LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 2 LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE PLAN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 20'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE SURFACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECOMPOSED GRANITE SURFACING  (1/4" MINUS GRADATION) SEE SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"X24"X18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"X18"X12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"X12"X8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE BOULDERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE LANDSCAPE SCHEDULE AND DETAILS SHEET L3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIP RAP SURFACING,  SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOTANICAL NAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYMBOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHRUBS AND GRASSES

AutoCAD SHX Text
CACTUS AND SUCCULENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROSOPIS VELUTINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALOE X BLUE ELF

AutoCAD SHX Text
HESPERALOE FUNIFERA

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALOE STRIATA

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUHLENBERGIA CAPILLARIS 'WHITE CLOUD'

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAXINUS GREGGII

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHILOPSIS LINEARIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORDIA PARVIFOLIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
EUPHORBIA ANTISYPHILITICA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALLIANDRA CALIFORNIA 'SIERRA STAR'

AutoCAD SHX Text
HESPERALOE PARVIFLORA 'DESERT FLAMENCO'

AutoCAD SHX Text
YUCCA PALLIDA

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACACIA WILLARDIANA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEROCACTUS GLAUCUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACACIA FARNESIANA

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUHLENBERGIA RIGIDA 'NASHVILLE'

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUSSELIA EQUISTIFORMIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUHLENBERGIA RIGENS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGAVE PARRYI V. COUESII

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARNEGIA GIGANTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEDILANTHUS MACROCARPUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUQUIERIA SPLENDENDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HYDROSEED, SEE SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEUCOPHYLLUM CANDIDUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STABILIZED DECOMPOSED GRANTE SURFACING,  SEE SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PACHYCEREUS MARGINATUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCUTELLARIA SUFFRUTESCENS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUELLIA BRITTONIANA

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORDIA BOISSIERI



FIRST FLOOR
100' - 0"

SECOND FLOOR
114' - 8"

T.O.MASONRY
132' - 0"

AE BCD 2

A5.2

3

A5.2

PERFORATED METAL PANEL (MP-1) ON 
TS STRUCTURAL FRAME - REF. 

STRUCTURAL

METAL SCREEN (MP-1 & MP-2), 
TYP.

LIGHT MONITOR 
BEYOND

METAL SCREEN (MP-1 & MP-2), 
TYP.

METAL PANEL WINDOW 
SHROUD BEYOND (MP-4)

OPAQUE INSULATED GLAZING PANEL, TYP.BREAK METAL COLUMN WRAP, TYP.ALUMINUM STOREFRONT, TYP.

ROOF TOP MECHANICAL UNIT 
BEYOND

NOTE: PATIO WALLS AND FENCE NOT SHOWN FOR CLARITY - REF. SHEET 
A1.1 AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS

FIRST FLOOR
100' - 0"

SECOND FLOOR
114' - 8"

T.O.MASONRY
132' - 0"

123456789
1

A5.2

4

A5.2

5

A5.2
LIGHT MONITOR 
BEYOND

MECHANICAL UNIT 
BEYOND LIGHT MONITOR 

BEYOND

MECHANICAL UNIT 
BEYOND

LIGHT MONITOR 
BEYOND

METAL SCREEN (MP-1 & 
MP-2), TYP.

8x8x16 EXPOSED CMU, 
TYP.

METAL PANEL 
WINDOW SHROUD 
BEYOND

PERFORATED METAL PANEL (MP-1) ON 
TS STRUCTURAL FRAME - REF. 

STRUCTURAL

6

A5.3

FIRST FLOOR
100' - 0"

SECOND FLOOR
114' - 8"

T.O.MASONRY
132' - 0"

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
1

A5.2

4

A5.2

5

A5.2

LIGHT MONITOR 
BEYOND

MECHANICAL UNIT 
BEYOND

METAL SCREEN (MP-1 & 
MP-2), TYP.

8x8x16 EXPOSED CMU, 
TYP.

PERFORATED METAL PANEL (MP-1) ON 
TS STRUCTURAL FRAME - REF. 

STRUCTURAL

MECHANICAL UNIT 
BEYOND LIGHT MONITOR 

BEYOND

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT 
WINDOW SYSTEM BEYOND

CMU PIER, TYP.

METAL PANEL WINDOW 
SHADE (MP-4)

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT WITH 
INSULATED GLAZING AND 
INSULATED OPAQUE GLAZING 
PANELS - REF. WINDOW TYPES

12" CAST ALUMINUM 
BUILDING NUMBERS, TYP.

12" & 18" CAST ALUMINUM 
BUILDING LETTERS, TYP.

EXPOSED STEMWALL BELOW 
EXPOSED CONC. SLAB EDGENOTE: PLANTERS AND SITE WALLS NOT SHOWN FOR CLARITY ALUMINUM STOREFRONT WINDOW, 

TYP.

6

A5.3

FIRST FLOOR
100' - 0"

SECOND FLOOR
114' - 8"

T.O.MASONRY
132' - 0"

A EB C D2

A5.2

3

A5.2

8x8x16 EXPOSED CMU, 
TYP.

MECHANICAL UNIT 
BEYOND

LIGHT MONITOR 
BEYOND

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT 
ENTRY, TYP.

CMU PIER, TYP.

METAL PANEL WINDOW 
SHADE (MP-4)

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT WITH 
INSULATED GLAZING AND 

INSULATED OPAQUE GLAZING 
PANELS - REF. WINDOW TYPES

METAL SCREEN (MP-1 & 
MP-2), TYP.

FLAT METAL PANEL (MP-3)

5

A5.3

A
R
C
H
IT
EC

TS

JOB NO:
DATE:
REVISIONS

DRAWN BY:

CO
NS

UL
TA

NT
S

26
1 

No
rth

 C
ou

rt 
Av

en
ue

Tu
cs

on
, A

riz
on

a 
85

70
1

52
0.

79
5.

27
05

   
Fa

x 5
20

.7
95

.6
17

1
ww

w.
bw

sa
rc

hs
.c

om

B
U

R
N

S
 W

A
L
D

-H
O

P
K

IN
S

 S
H

A
M

B
A

C
H

A
R

C
H

IT
E
C

T
S

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y -

NOT F
OR C

ONST
RUCTIO

N

FO
R R

EV
IEW

 PU
RPO

SE
S O

NLY

8/
15

/2
01

9 
2:

22
:2

9 
PM

95% CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

A5.1

BUILDING ELEVATIONS

16 AUGUST 2019
1712.000

Pi
na

l C
ou

nt
y

Ne
w

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s
Bu

ild
in

g

CI
VI

L
Pe

rry
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g
50

5 
W

. W
et

m
or

e 
Rd

.
Tu

cs
on

, A
Z 

85
70

4
Ph

on
e:

 5
20

.6
20

.9
87

0

LA
ND

SC
AP

E
M

cG
an

n 
&

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s

68
14

 N
. O

ra
cl

e 
Rd

., 
Su

ite
21

0
Tu

cs
on

, A
Z 

85
70

5
Ph

on
e:

 5
20

.2
97

.9
54

0

ST
RU

CT
UR

AL
Tu

rn
er

 S
tru

ct
ur

al
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g
30

26
 N

. C
ou

nt
ry

 C
lu

b 
Rd

.
Tu

cs
on

, A
Z 

85
71

6
Ph

on
e:

 5
20

.3
23

.3
42

2

M
EC

HA
NI

CA
L

Ad
am

s 
&

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s

64
22

 E
. S

pe
ed

wa
y 

Bl
vd

,
Su

ite
 1

30
Tu

cs
on

, A
Z 

85
71

0
Ph

on
e:

 5
20

.3
23

.3
85

8

EL
EC

TR
IC

AL
M

3 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g
20

51
 W

. S
un

se
t R

d,
 S

ui
te

10
1

Tu
cs

on
, A

Z 
85

70
4

Ph
on

e:
 5

20
.2

93
.1

48
8

IN
TE

RI
OR

S
In

te
gr

at
ed

 In
te

rio
rs

, L
TD

74
18

 N
. C

am
in

o 
Si

n 
Va

ca
s

Tu
cs

on
, A

Z 
85

71
8

Ph
on

e:
52

0.
32

5.
53

67

CO
ST

 C
ON

SU
LT

IN
G

Co
m

pu
su

lt,
 In

c.
59

27
 E

as
t P

im
a 

St
re

et
Tu

cs
on

, A
Z 

85
71

2
Ph

on
e:

52
0.

88
2.

40
44

31
 N

 P
in

al
 S

t, 
Bl

dg
 F

Fl
or

en
ce

, A
Z 

85
13

2

Author

 1/8" = 1'-0"2 01 - BUILDING ELEVATION - NORTH

 1/8" = 1'-0"3 02 - BUILDING ELEVATION - EAST

 1/8" = 1'-0"1 04 - BUILDING ELEVATION - WEST

 1/8" = 1'-0"4 03 - BUILDING ELEVATION - SOUTH




	PZ Agenda 9-19-2019
	PZ Minutes 9-5-2019
	9-19-19 Staff Report - PZ Dev Code Reorg TOC  Mod 1 comments
	Staff Report PZ-19-30 Attorney's Building
	Pinal County Attorneys Office DR
	Staff Report PZ-19-30 Development Services Building
	Pinal County DS DR AppDrawings 1
	Pinal County DS DR Drawings 2

